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For the convenience of readers and for information purpose only, the auditors’ report and the accompanying
financial statements have been translated into English from the original Chinese version prepared and used in
the Republic of China. In the event of any discrepancy between the English version and the original Chinese
version or any differences in the interpretation of the two versions, the Chinese-language auditors’ report and
financial statements shall prevail.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REVIEW REPORT TRANSLATED FROM CHINESE

PWCR20000113

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Yuanta Futures Co., Ltd.

Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Yuanta Futures Co., Ltd and
subsidiaries (the “Group™) as at September 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related consolidated statements
of comprehensive income for the three-month and nine-month periods then ended, as well as the
consolidated statements of changes in equity and of cash flows for the nine-month periods then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies. Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Futures Commission Merchants, Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Firms and International Accounting Standard 34, “Interim Financial Reporting” as endorsed
by the Financial Supervisory Commission. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on these

consolidated financial statements based on our reviews.

Scope of Review

We conducted our reviews in accordance with the Statement of Auditing Standards No. 65 “Review of
Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity” in the Republic of China. A
review of consolidated financial statements consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons
responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures.
A review is substantially less in scope than an audit and consequently does not enable us to obtain
assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit.

Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.
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Conclusion

Based on our reviews, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying
consolidated financial statements do not present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at September 30, 2020 and 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance
for the three-month and nine-month periods then ended and its consolidated cash flows for the nine-
month periods then ended in accordance with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Futures Commission Merchants, Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports
by Securities Firms and International Accounting Standard 34, “Interim Financial Reporting” as

endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission.

Lo, Chiao-Sen Lee, Hsiu-Ling
For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan

October 28, 2020

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of
operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other
than the Republic of China. The standards, procedures and practices in the Republic of China governing the audit of such
financial statements may differ from those generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China.
Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements and report of independent accountants are not intended for
use by those who are not informed about the accounting principles or auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic
of China, and their applications in practice.

As the financial statements are the responsibility of the management, PricewaterhouseCoopers cannot accept any liability for
the use of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any errors or misunderstandings that may derive from the translation.



YUANTA FUTURES CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)
(The balance sheets as of September 30, 2020 and 2019 are reviewed, not audited)

September 30, 2020 December 31,2019 September 30, 2019

ASSETS Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Current assets

[11100 Cash and cash equivalenis 6()and 7 $ 5,896,715 &6 5 5,224,045 7 $ 5,309,900 7
112000 Financial assets at fair value 6(2), 7and 11

through profit or loss - current 246,459 316,294 1 289,786 1
113200 Financial assets at fair value 6{3)

through other comprehensive

income - current 452,522 1 581,447 1 184,517
113300 Financial assets at amortised  6(6)

cosl - current - - - - 62,056 -
114070 Margin deposits 6(3)and 7 90,585,460 90 64,708,416 87 66,221,445 88
114080 Futures trading margin 6(4)

receivable - - 364 -
114100 Security lending deposits 125,051 45,844 52,179 -
114130 Accounts receivable 147,998 55,995 - 68,608 -
114140 Accounts receivable - related 7

parties 9,706 - 2,37 - 2,563 -
114150 Prepayments 17,371 - 7,356 - 12,018
114170 Other receivables 22,610 - 31,441 - 87,071 -
114180 Other receivables - related 7

parties 7,655 - 12,412 - 18,122 -
114300 Leverage margin contract 7

trading client margin deposits 291,528 - 258,250 222,244 -
114600 Current income tax asseis 341 - 341 341 -
119000 Other current assets 157,838 18 28 -
110000 Subtotal current assets 97,965,254 97 71,245,136 96 72,531,242 96

Non-current assets

123200 Financial assets at fair value 6(3)

through other comprehensive

inceme - non-current 1,593,786 2 1,518,539 2 1,529,871 2
125000 Property and equipment 6(9) 601,174 1 597,740 1 593,464 1
125800 Right-of-use assets 6(10) 40,305 - 67,790 - 38,230
127000 Intangible assets &(11) 41,509 - 41,049 - 40,997 -
128000 Deferred income tax assets 35,062 - 25,074 - 23,901 -
129010 Operating guarantee deposits  6(7)and 7 145,637 145,799 145,938 -
129020 Clearing and settlement funds  6(8) 539,414 535,686 1 536,576 1
129030 Refundable deposits 7 44 378 38,437 38,359 -
129130 Prepaymeant for equipment 75,196 66,503 66,646 -
129990 Other non-current assets -

Other 2,508 - 2,086 - 2,068 -
120000 Subtotal non-current assets 3,119,059 3 3,038,753 4 3,016,050 4
906001 Total assets 101,084,313 100 % 74,283,889 100 75,547,292 100

{Continued)



YUANTA FUTURES CO.. LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)
(The balance sheets as of September 30, 2020 and 2019 are reviewed, not audited)

September 3¢, 2020 December 31,2019 September 30,2019
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Current liabilities
212000 Financial iiabilities at fair 6(2)and 1
value through profit or loss -
current $ 144,734 - % 72,099 70,226 -
214080 Futures traders’ equity 6(3)and 7 90,310,933 90 64,525,451 87 65,936,223 88
214100 Leverage margin contract
transaction traders' equity 246,356 - 225,185 - 182,482 -
214130 Accounts payable 170,114 104,614 - 85,352
214140 Accounts payable - related 7
parties 23,420 - 14,505 - 11,704 -
214160 Collection for third parties 1¢,750 - 6,322 - 7,658 -
214170 Other payables 220,471 - 252,319 1 211,974 1
214180 Other payables - related parties 7 2,946 - 1,296 512 -
214600 Current income tax liabilities 45,970 - 72,463 - 155,484 -
216000 Lease liahilities - current 7 25,547 - 36,089 - 24,149 -
219000 Other current liabilities 28,684 15,718 - 157,690 -
216000 Subtotal current liabilities 91,229,925 a0 65,326,061 88 66,844,454 89
Non-current liabilities
226000 Lease liabilitics - non-current 7 14,818 - 31,884 - 14,229
229000 Cther non-current liabilities 70,243 - 69,807 - 74,202 -
220000 Subtatal non-current liabilities 85,061 - 101,691 - 88,431 -
906003 Total liabilitics 91,314,986 90 65,427,752 88 66,932,885 39
Equity attributable fo owners of
the parent company
Capital
301010 Cemmon stock 6(14) 2,499,763 3 2,322,763 3 2,322,753 3
Additional paid-in capital
302000 Capital surplus 6(15) 1,624,543 2 940,976 1 940,976 1
Retained earnings
304010 Legal reserve 6(16)17) 1,021,010 1 907,430 1 907,430 1
304020 Special reserve 6(16)(FT) 2,294 034 2 2,074,901 3 2,074,901 3
304040 Undistributed carings 6(17) 1,072,236 1 1,313,798 2 1,062,837 1
Other equity
305000 Other equity interest 6(18) 1,257,741 1 1,296,269 2 1,305,500 2
306004 Total equity 9,769,327 10 8,856,137 12 8,614,407 11
906002 Total liabilitics and equity $ 101,084,313 100 % 74,283,889 100 75,547,292 100

The accompanying noies are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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YUANTA FUTURES CO.. LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

{Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except earnings per share amounts)

{UNAUDITED)
Three months ended September 30 Nine months ended September 30
2020 2019 2020 2019
Items Notes AMOUNT % _AMOUNT % _AMOUNT _%_ _AMOUNT Y
Revenues
401000 Brokerage 6(19) and 7 $ 936,509 95 $ 694,935 9% § 2,835,112 94 § 2,004,134 94
410000 Gains on trading of securities  6(2)(20) 10,812 1 1,798 - 22,823 1 2,899 -
421300 Dividend income 6(2) and 7 1,600 4,765 1 2,087 - 4,765 -
421500 {Losses) gains on valuation of 6(2)
trading securities ( m,1200¢ ¢ 367) - 7,769) - 2,753 -
421600 Gains (losses) on covering of  6(2)
borrowed securities and bonds
with resale agreements-short
sales ( 2,396) - ( 400600 1 1,485 - ( 5,350) -
421610 Valuation gains (losses) on 6(2)
horrowed securities and bonds
with resale agreements-short
sales at fair value through
profit or loss 6,199 1 ( 2,752) - 22,007 1 ( 2,753) -
424200 Securities commission revenue 7 2,513 848 - 5,369 - 2,586 -
424300 Clearance fee from 6(21yand 7
consignation 18,429 2 18,025 3 58,005 2 52,765 2
424400 Net gain on derivative 6(2)(22)
financial instruments 20,990 2 3,545 i 72,125 2 62,877 3
424900 Futures advisory revenues 2,192 - 2,594 7,560 - 3,132 -
425100 Losses arising from 6(6)
derecognition of financial
assets measured at amortised
cost - - ¢ 8) - - - 8) -
428000 Other operating (losses) 7
revenues ( 2,291y - 1,682 - ( 9,206) _ - 10,203 1
400000 Total revenues 983,437 100 721,059 100 3,009,598 100 2,232,963 100G
Costs and expenses
501000 Brokerage fee 6(23) ( 198,149) ( 20) ¢ 117,652) ¢ 16) ( 570,601) (. 19) ¢ 356,891) (16
502000 Dealer handiing fee 6(23) ( 1,070} - ( 1,970) - ( 5,665) - 3,991) -
521200 Interest expense 7 4,551 1 ¢ 20,368) (. 3)( 24,256) (1) ( 56,604) (  3)
425300 Expected credit impairment
losses and reversal gainsg 1,763 - 656 - ( 35,703) ( 1) 2,761 -
524100 Futures commission 624)and 7T [ 192,51 ¢ 20 ¢ 156,188 ( 22 ¢( 589,547y ( 20) ( 492,378 ( 22)
524300 Clearance fee 6{25) ( 143,617y ( 15)¢ 93.676) ( 13)( 431,795) (143 ¢ 281,868)( 13)
528000 Other operating fee ( 993) - 294) - ( 2,442) - ( 850) B
531000 Employee benefit expense 6{26)(27) ( 176,119 ( 18) ¢ 175,907) ( 24) ( 557,740 ( 18) ( 526,482) ( 23)
532000 Depreciation and amortization 6(26) ( 271,700 ¢ 3¢ 21,848 3)¢( 80,6240 ¢ 3 ( 54,670 ( 3
533000 Other operating expenses 6(26)and 7 ( 108,962y (__11)¢ 104,463) (__135)( 331.07) (1) ¢ 327,852) (__15)
500000 Total costs and expenses ( 847,813) (__86)¢( 691,710y (__96)(__2,649,459)(_ 88)(__ 2,118,826) (_ 93)
Operating income 135,624 14 29,349 4 360,139 12 114,137 5
602000 Other gains and losses 6(2)(28) and 7 208,301 21 341,293 47 715,487 24 1,004,693 45
902001 Income before income tax 343,925 35 370,642 51 1,075,626 36 1,118,830 50
701000 Income tax expense 6(29) { 67,002y (¢ ST,499 (8 ( 208,57 Ti( 214,963) (__ 9)
902005 Netincome $ 276,923 28 § 313.143 43 § 867,047 _ 29 $ 903.867 _ 41
{Continued)



YUANTAFUTURES CO,, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except earnings per share amounts)

(UNAUDITED)
Three moaths ended September 30 Nine months ended September 30
2020 2019 2029 2019
Items Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT % AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss
805540 Unrealized gain and loss on  6(5)(18)
cquity inslrument investment
measured at fatr value
through other
comprehensive income $ 119,697 12 % 42,781 6 % 11,624 - § 134,819 6
Items that may be
reclassified to profit or loss
subsequently
805610 Translation gain and loss on  6(18)
the financial statements of
foreign operating entities ( 12,463) (_l) ( 10,025; (___1) ( 26,124) (_l) 5,544 -
805000 Total other comprehensive
income (loss) {net of tax) $ 107,234 ; $ 32,756 =5 (§ 14,500) (___l) $ 140,363 .mﬁ
902006 Total comprehensive income $ 384,157 .“,__92 $ 345,899 ﬁ $ 852,547 i $ 1,044,230 i
Consolidated net income
attributable to:
Owners of the parent $ 276,923 ,ﬁ $ 313,143 ﬁ $ 867,047 i $ 903,867 =41
Consolidated comprchensive
income attributable to:
Owners of the parent $ 384,157 =39- $ 345,899 ﬁ $ 852,547 :28 £ 1,044,230 ._—_4—7
Earnings per share (in New
Taiwan Dollars)
Baste and diluted carnings per
share $ .11 § 1.35 % 1.55 % 3.89

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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YUANTA FUTURES CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSQLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)
(UNAUDITED)

For the ninc months ended Scptember 30
Notes 2020 2019

CASH FLLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax $ 1,075,626 i) 1,118,830
Adjustments
Income and expenses having no cffect on cash flows

Depreciation 6(9)(10)(26) 71,113 57,329
Amortization G(11)26) g,511 7,342
Interest income 6(28) { 594,873 ) 838,299
Interest expense 24,256 66,604
Dividend income ( 89,508 y 117,530 3
Expected credit impainnent losses and reversal gains 6(28) 35,703 { 2,781)
Losses (gains) on disposal of property and equipment o9 259 ( 52)
Loss on disposal of financial assets at amortised cost - 8
Share-based payments 6(13) 13,239 -

Changes in operating assets and liabilitics
Changes in operating asscts

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - current 69,661 ( 45,111)
Marpin deposits { 25,929,148 ) ¢ 1,680,829 )
Futures trading margin receivable { 35,703 3,404
Security lending deposits { 83,207 ) ( 52,179
Accounts receivable { 82,003 ( 65,648 )
Accounts receivable - related partics { 7,329 1,470
Prepayments [ 10,203 ) ¢ 5,675 )
Other receivables 173 { 36,765 )
Other receivables - related parties { 1,257 75
Leverage margin contract trading client margin deposits { 33,278 ) ( 05,394 )
Other current assels { 157,820 ) ¢ 5)
Cther non-current assets - Other ( 422 ) «( 1,637)
Changes in operating liabilities
Financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss - current 12,651 50,137
Futures traders’ equity 25,825,430 1,603,464
Leverage margin contract transaction traders’ equity 21,171 78,747
Accounts payable 65,300 ( 38,643 )
Accounts payable - related parties 8,915 ( 7.289 )
Collection for third parties 4,428 479
Other payables ( 35,524y ( 167 )
Other payables-related parties 1,754 ( 403 )
Other current liabilities 13,124 133,508
Dther non-current liabilities 436 ( $.000)
Cash inflow generated from operations 242,684 123,970
Interest received 608,980 816,302
Interest paid ( 20,491 3 ( 60,380 )
Dividends received 89,920 113,810
Income tax paid { 245,060 ¥ 208,723 )
Net cash flows from operating activitics 676,033 784.979
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of financial assets a1 fair value through other comprehensive
income ( 708,247 ) ( 1,064,284 )
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through other G(5)
comprehensive income 713,549 1,044,259
Acquisition of financial asseis at amortised cost - ( 31,141 )
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at amortised cost - 31,133
Proceeds from repayments of financial assets at amortised cost . 31,541
Acquisition of property and equipment G ({ 29,646 ) ( 18,724 )
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 6{(%) 210 382
Increase in intangible assets G{11) ({ 1,723 3 | 1,215)
Increase In operating guarantee deposits - ( 52
Increase in clearing and settlement funds ({ 3,728y ( 43,788 )
Increase in refundable deposits ( 6,000 3 ( 36)
Ingrease in prepayment for equipment ( 35,663 ) ( 50,026 )
Net cash flows used in investing activities { 11,248 3 ( 101,951 )
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of principal portion of [case labilities ( 26,674 ( 18,679 )
Payment of cash dividends 616y { 799,924 ) 650,373 )
Proceeds from issuance of shares 847,328 -
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities 20,730 ( 669,052 )
Effect of change in foreign exchange rates { 13,745 ) 4,362
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 671,770 18,338
Cash and cash equivalents al beginning of period 5,224,945 5,291,562
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 5.896.715 $ 5,309,900

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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YUANTA FUTURES CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 AND 2019
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwise Indicated)
(Unaudited)

1. HISTORY AND ORGANIZATION
Yuanta Futures Co., Ltd.’s (the “Company™) and its subsidiaries® (collectively referred herein as the

“Group”) profile is described below:

(1) The Company was incorporated as a company limited by shares under the provisions of the
Company Law of the Republic of China (R.0O.C.) and started its operations on April 9, 1997. The
Company merged with “Refco Taiwan Co., Ltd.” on September 1, 2003 and was renamed as
“Polaris Refco Futures Co., Ltd.”. As of 2005, on account of changes in foreign sharecholders, an
extraordinary shareholders’ meeting was held on February 15, 2006, and resolved to change its
name to “Polaris MF Futures Co., Ltd.” as approved by the Ministry of Economic Affairs.

On October 6, 2011, the Board of Directors of Polaris MF Futures Co., Ltd. decided to merge with
Yuanta Futures Co., Ltd. In relation to the share conversion with Yuanta Futures Co., Ltd. in
accordance with Gin-Gwen-Zheng-Qi Letter No. 1000052507, the Company can exchange its
common shares using a ratio of 1.01 share to 1 share of Yuanta Futures common share. Both parties
agreed to set April 1, 2012 as the merger date. The Company has also obtained the approval to
change its name to “Yuanta Futures Co., Ltd.”,

(2) The Group is primarily engaged in onshore and offshore futures brokerage business, futures dealing,
futures consulting, futures business management, securities dealing, leverage transaction merchant,
and a variety of futures related businesses approved by the competent authority. On August 14,
2017, with permission from the competent authority, the Group ceased engaging in futures business
management., As of September 30, 2020, the Company had 4 branches.

(3) As of September 30, 2020 and 2019, the Group had 445 and 420 employees, respectively.

2. THE DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUANCE OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND PROCEDURES FOR AUTHORISATION

These consolidated financial statements were reported to the Board of Directors on October 28, 2020.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS

(1) Effect of the adoption of new issuances of or amendments to International Financial Reporting

Standards (“IFRS*) as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission (“FSC*),

New standards, interpretations and amendments endorsed by the FSC effective from 2020 are as
follows:

~10~



Effective date by
International Accounting

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Standards Board
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8§, ‘Disclosure initiative-definition January 1, 2020
of material’

Amendments to IFRS 3, ‘Definition of a business’ January 1, 2020
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7, ‘Interest rate benchmark January 1, 2020
reform’

Amendment to IFRS 16, ‘Covid-19-related rent concessions’ June 1, 2020 (Note)

Note : Earlier application from Januvary 1, 2020 is allowed by I'SC.
The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Group’s financial condition
and financial performance based on the Group’s assessment.

(2) Effect of new issuances of or amendments to [FRSs as endorsed by the FSC but not vet adopted by

the Group
New standards, interpretations and amendments endorsed by the FSC effective from 2021 are as

follows:
Effective date by
International Accounting
New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Standards Board
Amendments to IFRS 4, ‘Extension of the temporary exemption from January 1, 2021

applying [FRS 9’
The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Group’s financial condition
and financial performance based on the Group’s assessment.

(3) IFRSs issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC

New standards, interpretations and amendments issued by IASB but not yet included in the IFRSs as
endorsed by the FSC are as follows:

Effective date by
International Accounting
New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Standards Board
Amendments to IFRS 3, ‘Reference to the conceptual framework’ January 1, 2022
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, ‘Sale or contribution of assets To be determined by
between an investor and its associate or joint venture’ International Accounting
Standards Board
IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’ January 1, 2023
Amendments to IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’ January 1, 2023
Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Classification of liabilities as current or non- January 1, 2023
current’
Amendments to TAS 16, ‘Property, plant and equipment: proceeds January 1, 2022

before intended use’

~11~



Effective date by
International Accounting

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Standards Board
Amendments to IAS 37, ‘Onerous contracts—cost of fulfilling January 1, 2022
a contract’

Amnual improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 January 1, 2022

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16, ‘Interest January 1, 2021
Rate Benchmark Reform— Phase 2’

The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Group’s financial condition
and financial performance based on the Group’s assessment.
4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(1) Compliance statement

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Futures Commission Merchants,
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Firms, and the International
Accounting Standard 34, “Interim financial reporting” as endorsed by the FSC.

(2) Basis of preparation

A. Except for the following items, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention:

(A)Financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through
profit or loss.

(B)Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.

(C)Defined benefit liabilities recognised based on the net amount of pension fund assets less
present value of defined benefit obligation.

B. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations as
endorsed by the FSC (collectively referred herein as the “IFRSs™) requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 5.

(3) Basis of consolidation

A. Basis for preparation of consolidated financial statements:
(A)All subsidiaries are included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Subsidiaries are

all entities (including structured entities) controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity
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when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Consolidation
of subsidiaries begins from the date the Group obtains control of the subsidiaries and ceases
when the Group loses control of the subsidiaries.

(B)Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains or losses on transactions between
companies within the Group are eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

B. Subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements:

Ownership (%o)
Main business September December September
Name of investor Name of subsidiary activities 30, 2020 31,2019 30,2019 Note
The Company Yuanta Futures Financial services 100 100 100
{Hong Kong)
Limited
The Company SYF Information Information 100 100 100
Limited technology services
SYF Information SYF Information Information 100 - -
Limited {Shanghai) Limited technology services
SYF Information SYF Information Investment holding - 100 100 Note 1
Limited (Samoa) Limited
SYF Information SYF Information Information - 100 100 Note 1
{Samoa) Limited {Shanghai) Limited technology services

Note 1: On September 25, 2019, to streamline organizational structure, the Board of Directors of
the Company approved to liquidate SYF Information (Samoa) Limited. The liquidation
had been approved by the competent authority on October 25, 2019, and was completed
on July 17, 2020.

C. Subsidiaries not included in the consolidated financial statements: None.

D. Adjustments for subsidiaries with different balance sheet dates: None.

E. Significant restrictions: None.

F. Subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests that are material to the Group: None.

(4) Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the

currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional

currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in New Taiwan dollars, which is the

Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

A. Foreign currency transactions and balances

(A)Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange

rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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(B)Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the period end are re-
translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences
arising upon re-translation at the balance sheet date are recognised in profit or loss.

(C)Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies held at fair value
through profit or loss are re-translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the consolidated
balance sheet date; their translation differences are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies held at fair value through other
comprehensive income are re-translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the consolidated
balance sheet date; their translation differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.
However, non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are not
measured at fair value are translated using the historical exchange rates at the dates of the
initial transactions.

(D)Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within ‘other gains and losses’.

B. Translation of foreign operations

The operating results and financial position of all the group entities and associates that have a

functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

(A)Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing exchange
rate at the date of that consolidated balance sheet;

(B)Income and expenses for each consolidated statement of comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates of that period; and

(C)All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income,

(5) Classification of current and non-current items

A. Assets that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current assets; otherwise they are
classified as non-current assets:
(A)Assets arising from operating activities that are expected to be realised, or are intended to be
sold or consumed within the normal operating cycle;
{B)Assets held mainly for trading purposes;
(C)Assets that are expected to be realised within twelve months from the balance sheet date;
(D)Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricted cash and cash equivalents and those that are
to be exchanged or used to settle liabilities more than twelve months after the balance sheet
date.
B. Liabilities that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current liabilities; otherwise
they are classified as non-current liabilities:
(A)Liabilities that are expected to be settled within the normal operating cycle;
(B)Liabilities arising mainly from trading activitics;

(C)Liabilities that are to be settled within twelve months from the balance sheet date;
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(D)Liabilities for which the repayment date cannot be extended unconditionally to more than
twelve months after the consolidated balance sheet date. Terms of a liability that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not

affect its classification.

(6) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, checking accounts, demand deposits and short-term

highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to

insignificant risk of changes in value.

(7) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets that are not measured at

B.

C.

amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income. Financial assets at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss at initial recognition when they eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or
recognition inconsistency.

On a regular way purchase or sale basis, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised and derecognised using trade date accounting.

At initial recognition, the Group measures the financial assets at fair value and recognises the
transaction costs in profit or loss. The Group subsequently measures the financial assets at fair

value, and recognises the gain or loss in profit or loss.

D. The Group recognises the dividend income when the right to receive payment is established, future

economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the

dividend can be measured reliably.

(8) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income comprise equity securities

B.

which are not held for trading, and for which the Group has made an irrevocable election at initial
recognition to recognise changes in fair value in other comprehensive income.
On a regular way purchase or sale basis, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive

income are recognised and derecognised using trade date accounting.

C. At initial recognition, the Group measures the financial assets at fair value plus transaction costs.

The Group subsequently measures the financial assets at fair value:

The changes in fair value of equity investments that were recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to retained earnings and are not reclassified to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends are recognised as revenue when the right to receive
payment is established, future economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the

Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

(9) Financial assets at amortised cost

A. Financial assets at amortised cost are those that meet all of the following criteria:

(A)The objective of the Group’s business model is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows.
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(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(B)The assets’ contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest.

B. On a regular way purchase or sale basis, financial assets at amortised cost are recognised and
derecognised using trade date accounting.

C. At initial recognition, the Group measures the financial assets at fair value plus transaction costs.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective
interest method. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or
impaired.

Margin deposits
In accordance with the Rules Governing Futures Commission Merchants, margin deposits accounts

refer to the guarantee deposits and premiums collected from the futures customers, and the spread
is calculated based on daily market price.
Futures traders’ equity / Futures trading margin receivable

Futures traders’ equity is the trading margin/premiums deposited by customers and the difference of
daily close-market balance. Futures traders’ equity is shown under current liabilities. It cannot be
offset except for the same customer with the same category of accounts. If payable to customer does
not oceur, it should be classified as futures trading margin receivable.

Leverage margin contract trading client marein deposits

In accordance with the Regulations Governing Leverage Transaction Merchants, margin deposits
accounts refer to the guarantee deposits and premiums collected from the leveraged trader, and the
difference of daily evaluation,

Leverage margin contract transaction iraders’ equity

Leverage margin contract transaction traders’ equity is the trading margin/premiums deposited by
customers and the difference of daily evaluation. Leverage margin contract transaction traders’

equity is shown under current liabilities,
Accounts receivable
A. Accounts receivable entitle the Group a legal right to receive consideration in exchange for

transferred goods or rendered services.
B. The short-term accounts receivable without bearing interest are subsequently measured at initial
mvoice amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

For financial assets at amortised cost, margin deposit, futures trading margin receivables, security
borrowing deposits, accounts receivable, other receivables, leverage margin deposit, operation
guarantee deposits, clearing and settlement fund, and refundable deposits, at each reporting date, the
Group recognises the impairment provision for 12 months expected credit losses if there has not
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or recognises the impairment
proviston for the lifetime expected credit losses (ECLs) if such credit risk has increased since initial
recognition after taking into consideration all reasonable and verifiable information that includes

forecasts.
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(16)

(17)

(18)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from
the financial asset expire.

Property and equipment

A. Property and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Borrowing costs incurred during the
construction period are capitalised.

B. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

C. Equipment applies cost model and is depreciated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost over their estimated useful lives. Each part of an item of equipment with a cost that is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item must be depreciated separately.

D. The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each financial year-end. If expectations for the assets’ residual values and useful
lives differ from previous estimates or the patterns of consumption of the assets’ future economic
benefits embodied in the assets have changed significantly, any change is accounted for as a
change in estimate under [AS 8, “ Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors”, from the date of the change. The estimated useful lives of various fixed assets are 3~6
years except for buildings, which have useful lives from 10~60 years.

Leasing arrangements (lessee) —right-of-use assets/ lease liabilities

A. Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by the Group. For short-term leases or leases of low
value assets, lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

B. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the remaining lease payments at the
commencement date, discounted using the incremental borrowing interest rate. Lease payments
are comprised of the following:

(A) Fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable; and

(B) Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising
that option.

The Group subsequently measures the lease liability at amortised cost using the interest method

and recognises interest expense over the lease term. The lease liability is remeasured and the

amount of remeasurement is recognised as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset when there

are changes in the lease term or lease payments and such changes do not arise from contract

modifications.
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(19)

20)

@n

C. At the commencement date, the right-of-use asset is stated at cost comprising the following:

(A) The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

(B) Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date; and

(C) Any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee.

The right-of-use asset is measured subsequently using the cost model and is depreciated from
the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the asset’s useful life or the end of the lease
term. When the lease liability is remeasured, the amount of remeasurement is recognised as an

adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

. For lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease, the lessee shall decrease the carrying

amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease, and

recognize the difference between remeasured lease liability in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

A. Membership in a foreign Futures Exchange

Membership in a foreign Futures Exchange is stated at acquisition cost and regarded as having
an indefinite useful life as it was assessed to generate continuous net cash inflow in the
foreseeable future. Membership in a foreign Futures Exchange is not amortised, but is tested

annually for impairment.

B. Computer software

Computer software is stated at cost and amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful

life of 3 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

A. The Group assesses at each balance sheet date the recoverable amounts of those assets where

there is an indication that they are impaired. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell or value in use. When the circumstances or
reasons for recognising impairment loss for an asset in prior years no longer exist or diminish,
the impairment loss is reversed. The increased carrying amount due to reversal should not be
more than what the depreciated or amortised historical cost would have been if the impairment

had not been recognised.

. The recoverable amounts of intangible assets with an indefinite useful life shall be evaluated

periodically. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying

amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

Derivative financial instruments and non-hedging activities

Non-hedging derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value. Any changes in the fair value are

recognised in profit or loss.
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(22) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

A. Financial liabilities are classified in this category of held for trading if acquired principally for
the purpose of repurchasing in the short-term. Derivatives are also categorised as financial
liabilities held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities that meet one of the following criteria are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss at initial recognition:

(A)Hybrid (combined) contracts; or

(B)They eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or recognition inconsistency; or

(C)They are managed and their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
a documented risk management policy.

B. At initial recognition, the Group measures the financial liabilities at fair value. All related
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss. The Group subsequently measures these
financial liabilities at fair value with any gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.

(23) Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability specified in the contract

is discharged or cancelled or expires.
(24) Employee benefits
A. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid in respect of service rendered by employees in a period and should be recognised as
expense in that period when the employees render service.
B. Pensions
(A)Defined contribution plans
For defined contribution plans, the Group pays fixed contributions to an independent,
publicly or privately administered pension fund. The Group has no further legal or
constructive obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as pension expense when they are due on an accrual basis. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent of a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments.
(B)Defined benefit plans
a. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan. Typically
defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on
retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation. Net obligation under a defined benefit plan is defined as the present value
of an amount of pension benefits that employees will receive on retirement for their services
with the Group in current period or prior periods. The liability recognised in the balance
sheet in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets. The net defined benefit

obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit
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(25)

(26)

method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting
the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of government bonds (at the
consolidated balance sheet date).

b. Remeasurements arising on defined benefit plans are recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise and are recorded as retained earnings.

c. Pension cost for the interim period is calculated on a year-to-date basis by using the pension
cost rate derived from the actuarial valuation at the end of the prior financial year, adjusted
for significant market fluctuations since that time and for significant curtailments,
settlements, or other significant one-off events. Also, the related information is disclosed
accordingly.

C. Termination benefits
Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the termination of
employment as a result from either the Group’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment
before the normal retirement date, or an employee’s decision to accept an offer of redundancy
benefits in exchange for the termination of employment. The Group recognises expense as it can
no longer withdraw an offer of termination benefits or it recognises relating restructuring costs,
whichever is earlier. Benefits that are expected to be due more than 12 months after balance sheet
date shall be discounted to their present value.

D. Employees’ and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration
Employees’ remuneration and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration are recognised as expense
and liability, provided that such recognition is required under legal or constructive obligation and
those amounts can be reliably estimated. Any difference between the resolved amounts and the
subsequently actual distributed amounts is accounted for as changes in estimates.

Employee share-based payment

For the equity-settled share-based payment arrangements, the employee services received are

measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted at the grant date, and are recognised as

compensation cost over the vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. The fair value

of the equity instruments granted shall reflect the impact of market vesting conditions and non-

vesting conditions. Compensation cost is subject to adjustment based on the service conditions that

are expected to be satisfied and the estimates of the number of equity instruments that are expected

to vest under the non-market vesting conditions at each balance sheet date.Ultimately, the amount

of compensation cost recognised is based on the number of equity instruments that eventually vest.

Income tax

A. The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
items recognised directly in equity, in which cases the tax is recognised in other comprehensive
income or equity.

B. The current income tax expense is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
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enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in accordance with applicable tax regulations. It establishes provisions
where appropriate based on the amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. An additional
tax is levied on the unappropriated retained earnings and is recorded as income tax expense in
the year the stockholders resolve to retain the earnings.

C. Deferred income tax is recognised, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated balance sheet. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and Iaws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax Hability is settled.

D. Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. At each
consolidated balance sheet date, unrecognised and recognised deferred income tax assets are
reassessed.

E. Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset on the balance sheet when the entity has the
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and they are
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same entity or different entities that intend to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

F. The interim period income tax expense is recognised based on the estimated average annual
effective income tax rate expected for the full financial year applied to the pretax income of the
interim period, and the related information is disclosed accordingly.

G. If a change in tax rate is enacted or substantively enacted in an interim period, the Group
recognises the effect of the change immediately in the interim period in which the change occurs.
The effect of the change on items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or equity while the effect of the change on items recognised in profit or

loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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(27) Dividends
Dividends are recorded in the Company’s financial statements in the period in which they are
approved by the Company’s shareholders. Cash dividends are recorded as liabilities.

(28) Revenue recognition

A. Brokerage fee income: Service fee income that is generated from futures merchants exercising
futures transaction is recognised on the date of settlement.

B. Secu.rity commission revenue: Commission revenues that are generated from the operation of
securities introducing broker business by futures commission merchants. These income are
recognised on an accrual basis under the agreed terms.

C. Entrusted clearing settlement service fee: Service fee income that is generated by future
merchants who has the qualification of clearing membership while exercising clearing settlement
transaction is recognised on the date of futures transaction.

D. Derivative instrument net income
(A)Futures contract gains or losses: The margin of futures trading is recognised at cost and

measured through mark-to-market accounting. The gains or losses from mark-to-market,
reversed futures trading or settled contracts are recognised as gains or losses in the current
period.

(B)Options trading: The deposit of options trading is recognised at cost and assessed monthly
through mark-to-market valuation before the obligation is fulfilled. Any gain and loss
occurring due to the option exercise is recognised as gain and loss in the period.

E. Futures management fees revenues, supervisory income and brokerage income: These incomes
are recognised on an accrual basis under the agreed terms.

F. Interest income: All of the interest income of financial instruments are calculated using the
effective interest rate.

(29) Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
Chief Operating Decision-Maker. The Chief Operating Decision-Maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the
Board of Directors that makes strategic decisions.
5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT, ESTIMATES AND KEY SOURCES OF ASSUMPTION
UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make critical
judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies and make critical assumptions and estimates
concerning future events. Assumptions and estimates may differ from the actual results and are
continually evaluated and adjusted based on historical experience, the effect of Covid-19 and other
factors. There is no significant change during the period. Such assumptions and estimates have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year; and the related information is addressed below:
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(1) Evaluation of expected credit loss on futures trading margin receivable

The impairment assessment of the Group’s futures trading margin receivable is based on subjective
judgements, including whether there has been significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and loss rates calculated from historical data. Therefore, the Group periodically examines
the appropriateness of its estimates. Please refer to Note 21(6) for more information.

(2) Financial assets—fair value measurement of unlisted stocks without active market

The fair value of unlisted stocks held by the Group that are not traded in an active market is
determined by the market approach. The approach is taken with assumptions relating to the
determination of comparable companies and employing those companies’ latest price to earnings ratio
multiples as basis of pricing estimation along with discounts of marketability consideration. Any
changes in these judgements and estimates will impact the fair value measurement of these unlisted
stocks. Please refer to Note 21(3) for the financial instruments fair value information.
6. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTS
(1) Cash and cash equivalents

September 30, 2020 December 31, 2019 September 30, 2019

Petty cash $ 105 § 107 % 109
Cash in bank
Checking deposits 50 17 24
Demand deposits 247,945 287,437 232,495
Time deposits 4,939,666 4,037,984 3,898,751
Subtotal 5,187,766 4,325,545 4,131,379
Excess futures margin deposits 505,429 432,060 272,140
Excess. margin in foreign exchange 44,052 65,035 50,220
margin trading
Commercial paper (expiring within 159,468 402,305 856,161
three months)
S 5,896,715 § 5,224,945 § 5,309,900

A. The Group transacts with a variety of financial institutions all with high credit quality to disperse
credit risk, so it expects that the probability of counterparty default is remote.
B. The Group has no cash and cash equivalents pledged to others.
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(2) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss — current
September 30, 2020 December 31, 2019  September 30, 2019

Financial assets mandatorily
measured at fair value through
profit or loss

Listed stocks $ 52,003 $ 66,624 §$ 37,869
Beneficiary certificates 96,578 189,345 155,882
Futures contracts - non-hedging 58,135 24,783 61,421
Options contracts - non-hedging 7,591 11,765 15,610
Leverage margin contract
transactions - non-hedging 34,122 17,218 16,189
248,429 309,735 286,971
Valuation adjustment ( 1,970) 6,559 2,815
$ 246,459 3§ 316,294 § 289,786

September 30, 2020 December 31, 2019 September 30, 2019

Financial liabilities held for trading

Options - non-hedging $ 6,250 $ 5,156 $ 9,083

Security borrowing payable
- non-hedging 138,484 66,943 61,143
$ 144,734 § 72,099 § 70,226

A. Amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to financial assets and liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss are listed below:
For the three months ended September 30,

2020 2019
Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair
value through profit or loss
Listed stocks ($ 209) § 6,196
Beneficiary certificates 11,526 504
Non-hedging derivatives 105,596 59,621
Total $ 116,913  § 66,321

For the nine months ended September 30,

2020 2019
Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair
value through profit or loss
Listed stocks $ 15,724  $ 10,417
Beneficiary certificates 1,027 1,230
Non-hedging derivatives 287,016 222,265
Total $ 303,767 $ 233,912
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For the three months ended September 30,

2020 2019
Financial liabilities held for trading
Options - non-hedging ($ 84,530) ($ 55,058)
Security borrowing payable - non-hedging 3,803 ( 6,758)
Leverage margin contract transactions
- non-hedging ( 76) ( 1,018)
Total (% 80,803} ($ 62,834)

For the nine months ended September 30,

2020 2019
Financial liabilities held for trading
Options - non-hedging ($ 214,657) ($ 158,204)
Security borrowing payable - non-hedging 23,492 ( 8,143)
Leverage margin contract transactions
- non-hedging ( 234) ( 1,184)
Total (3 191,399) ($ 167,531)

For the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, the above mentioned
amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in gains on trading of securities, (losses) gains on valuation
of trading securities, gains (losses) on covering of borrowed securities and bonds with resale
agreements-short sales, valuation gains (losses) on borrowed securities and bonds with resale
agreements-short sales at fair value through profit or loss, net gain on derivative instruments and
other gains and losses.

B. Futures
‘The Group entered into futures contracts to earn the spread. As of September 30, 2020, December
31, 2019 and September 30, 2019, margin deposits for the contract was $563,564, $456,843 and
$333,561, respectively, with excess margin of $505,429, $432,060 and $272,140, respectively,
recognised in “cash and cash equivalents”,

C. The Group has no financial assets at fair value through profit or loss pledged to others.
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(3)

(4)

Margin deposits /Futures traders’ equity

September 30, 2020 December 31, 2019 September 30, 2019

Margin deposits by customers:

Cash in banks $ 65,417,893 § 48,031,093 § 50,584,654
Clearing house 12,289,380 7,582,545 6,551,010
Other futures commission 12,878,187 9,094,778 9,085,781
merchants
Total 90,585,460 64,708,416 66,221,445
Gain: Others 2,089 - 537
Less: Fees and interest revenue
pending for transfer ( 202,163) ( 145,940) ( 97,906)
Futures exchange tax
pending for transfer ( 6,620) ( 3,789) ( 3,894)
Temporary receipts ( 6,502) ( 3,619) ( 3,569)
Others ( 61,331) ( 29,617) ( 180,390)
Futures traders’ equity $ 90,310,933 § 64,525,451 § 65,936,223

A. The Group has no expected credit loss on margin deposits.

B. As at September 30, 2020, December 31, 2019 and September 30, 2019, without taking into
account any collateral held or other credit enhancements, the maximum exposure to credit risk in
respect of the amount that best represents the margin deposits held by the Group was $90,585,460,
$64,708,416 and $66,221,445, respectively.

Futures trading margin receivable
September 30, 2020 December 31, 2019 September 30, 2019
Futures trading margin receivable  § 122,112 § 86,409 § 86,754
Less: Allowance for uncollectible
accounts ( 122,112) ( 86,409) ( 86,390)
$ - $ - $ 364

A. Information relating to credit risk of futures trading margin receivable is provided in Note 21(6).
B. The ageing analysis of futures trading margin receivable is as follows:

September 30, 2020 December 31, 2019  September 30, 2019

Up to 30 days $ - 3 - 3 364
31-90 days - - -
91-180 days 25416 364 -
Over 181 days 96,696 86,045 86,390

$ 122,112 § 86,409 $ 86,754

The above ageing analysis was based on posting date.
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(5) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

September 30, 2020 December 31, 2019 September 30, 2019
Current items:
Equity instrument
Listed stocks $ 415,165 % 561,209 § 191,582
Valuation adjustment 37,357 20,238 ( 7,065)
Total $ 452,522 § 581,447 § 184,517
Non-current items:
Equity instrument
Listed stocks $ 104,770 § - 8 -
Valuation adjustment 7,396) - -
Subtotal 97,374 - -
Non-Listed stocks 221,132 221,132 221,132
Valuation adjustment 1,275,280 1,297,407 1,308,739
Subtotal 1,496,412 1,518,539 1,529,871
Total $ 1,593,786 $ 1,518,539 § 1,529,871

A. The Group has elected to classify stock investments

that are considered to be strategic

investments and earning steady dividend income as financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income. The fair value of such investments amounted to $2,046,308, $2,099,986
and $1,714,388 as at September 30, 2020, December 31, 2019 and September 30, 2019,
respectively.

. For the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, to avoid systemic
risks due to market interference and uncertainties, the Group sold $555,590, $896,395, $773,549
and $1,044,259, respectively, of listed stocks at fair value and resulted in cumulative gains on
disposal of $56,216, $5,717, $24,028 and $15,356, respectively.

C. Amounts recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income in relation to the financial

assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are listed below:
For the three months ended September 30,

2020 2019
Equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Fair value change recognised in other
comprehensive income $ 119,697 § 42,781
Cumulative losses (gains) reclassified to
retained earnings due to derecognition ($ 56,216) ($ 5,717)
Dividend income recognised in profit or loss
Held at end of period $ 6,071 % 11,223
Derecognised during the period 19,547 34,546
$ 25,618 § 45,769
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For the nine months ended September 30,

2020 2019
Equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Fair value change recognised in other
comprehensive income $ 11,624 § 134,819
Cunmulative losses (gains) reclassified to
retained earnings due to derecognition (8 24,028) ($ 15,356)
Dividend income recognised in profit or loss
Held at end of period $ 66,248 § 76,995
Derecognised during the period 19,547 34,546
$ 85,795 § 111,541

D. The Group has no financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income pledged to
others.

(6) Financial assets at amortised cost

September 30, 2020 December 31, 2019 September 30, 2019

Current items:

Financial bonds $ - 8 - % 62,094
Less: Accumulated impairment - - ( 38)
Total $ - 3 - § 62,056
Non-current items:
Financial bonds $ - 5 - 8 -
Less: Accumulated impairment - - -
Total $ - § - 8 -
A. Amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to financial assets at amortised cost are listed
below:
For the three months ended September 30,
2020 2019
Interest income $ - $ 757
(Provision)/Reversal of impairment loss - 36
Loss on disposal - | 8)
$ - % 785
For the nine months ended September 30,
2020 2019

Interest income $ - $ 2,200
(Provision)/Reversal of impairment loss - 15
Loss on disposal - ( 8)
$ - 3 2,207
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(8

B. For the nine months ended September 30, 2020, no financial assets at amortised cost were sold by
the Group. For the nine months ended September 30, 2019, the Group sold financial bonds which
were interfered due to market uncertainties with losses on disposal amounting to ($8).

C. As at September 30, 2019, without taking into account any collateral held or other credit
enhancements, the maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the amount that best represents
the financial assets at amortised cost held by the Group was $62,056. The Group did not hold
financial assets at amortised cost as at September 30, 2020 and December 31, 2019.

D. The Group has no financial assets at amortised cost pledged to others.

E. Information relating to credit risk is provided in Note 21(6).

Operating guarantee deposits

The Company’s annual interest rates on operating guarantee deposits that were provided as time
deposits maturing within one-year with Yuanta Bank as of September 30, 2020, December 31, 2019
and September 30, 2019 was 0.77%~1.035%, 1.035% and 1.035%, respectively.

As at September 30, 2020, December 31, 2019 and September 30, 2019, without taking into account
any collateral held or other credit enhancements, the maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of
the amount that best represents the operating guarantee deposits held by the Group was $145,637,
$145,799 and $145,938, respectively.

Clearing and settlement funds

As at September 30, 2020, December 31, 2019 and September 30, 2019, without taking into account
any collateral held or other credit enhancements, the maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of
the amount that best represents the clearing and settlement funds held by the Group was $539,414,
$535,686 and $536,576, respectively.

(Blank)
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(9) Property and equipment

2020
Leaschold
Land Buildings  Equipment improvements Total

At January 1,
Cost $ 410992 $ 71,577 § 200,872 § 31,645 § 715,086
Accumulated depreciation - ( 8,804) ( 83,161) ( 15,381} { 117.346)

$ 410992 § 62,773 $ 107,711 § 16,264 § 597,740
Opening net book amount at January 1, $ 410,992 § 62,773 $§ 107,711 % 16,264 § 597,740
Additions - - 29,646 - 29,646
Reclassifications - - 18,630 - 18,630
Disposals {cost) - - 14,201) ( 2,189) (  16,390)
Disposals (accumulated depreciation) - - 13,732 2,189 15,921
Depreciation expense o 2,557y ( 36,582) ( 4,864) ( 44,003)
Net exchange differences - - { 132} ( 238) ( 370)
Closing net book amount at September 30, § 410,992 § 60216 § 118,804 § 11,162 § 601,174
At September 30,
Cost $ 410992 § 71,577 $ 234,515 § 28,915 § 745,999
Accumulated depreciation - ( 11,361) ( 115,711) ( 17,753) ( 144.825)

$§ 410,992 § 60216 § 118,804 § 11,162 § 601,174

2019
Leasehold
Land Buildings  Equipment  improvements Total

At January 1,
Cost § 410992 § 71,577 $ 189,186 $ 48,592 § 720,347
Accumulated depreciation - ( 5,397) ( 76.607) ( 25,400y ( 107,404)

$ 410,992 § 66,180 $ 112,579 § 23,192 § 612,943
Opening net book amount at January 1, $ 410,992 § 66,180 § 112,579 § 23,192 § 612,943
Additions - - 18,275 449 18,724
Reclassifications - - 390 - 390
Disposals (cost) - - 25,164) ( 17,104) (  42,268)
Disposals (accumulated depreciation) - - 24,874 17,104 41,978
Depreciation expense - ( 2,556) ( 30,398) ( 3.541) ( 38,49%)
Net exchange differences - - 63 129 192
Closing net book amount at September 30, $ 410,992 $ 63,624 $ 100,619 § 18,229 $ 593,464
At September 30,
Cost $ 410992 § 71,577 § 182,721 §$ 32,112 § 697,402
Accumulated depreciation - 7,953) ( 82,102) ( 13,883) ( 103,938)

$ 410,992 § 63,624 $ 100,619 § 18,229 § 593,464
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(10) Leasing arrangements— lessee
A. The Group leases various assets including buildings. Rental contracts are typically made for

periods of 3 to 5 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide

range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose covenants, but
leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.
B. The carrying amount of right-of-use assets and the depreciation charge are as follows:

September 30, 2020  December 31, 2019  September 30, 2019

Carrying amount Carrying amount Carrying amount
Buildings $ 40,305 § 67,790 § 38,230
| For the three months ended September 30,
2020 2019
Depreciation charge Depreciation charge
Buildings $ 8,657 §$ 6,271
For the nine months ended September 30,
2020 2019
Depreciation charge Depreciation charge
Buildings $ 27,110 § 18,834

C. For the nine months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, there were no additions to right-of-use

assets.
D. The information on profit and loss accounts relating to lease contracts is as follows:

For the three months ended September 30,

2020 2019
Items affecting profit or loss
Interest expense on lease liabilitics $ 207§ 87
Expense on short-term lease 414 3,377

contracts
For the nine months ended September 30,

2020 2019
Items affecting profit or loss
Interest expense on lease liabilities $ 934 § 302
Expense on short-term lease 1,198 9,678

contracts
E. For the nine months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, the Group’s total cash outflow for
leases was $28,806 and $28,659, respectively.
I. Extension and termination options
In determining the lease term, the Group takes into consideration all facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option or not to exercise a termination
option. The assessment of lease period is reviewed if a significant event occurs which affects the

assessment.
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G. The Company entered into a lease contract for offices on September 24, 2020. The lease term is
5 years and the monthly rent is $3,495. The lease contract is expected to be effective from
November 2020.

(Blank)
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(11) Intangible assets

2020
Membership in a
foreign Futures
Exchange Others Total

At January 1,
Cost $ 24,125  § 45,814 § 69,939
Accumulated amortisation - ( 28,890} ( 28,890)

$ 24,125  $ 16,924 § 41,049
Opening net book amount at January 1, $ 24,125 % 16,924 § 41,049
Additions - 1,723 1,723
Reclassifications - 8,340 8,340
Disposals (cost) - ( 2,414) ( 2,414)
Disposals (accumulated amortisation) - 2,414 2,414
Amortisation expense - { 9,511) ( 9,511)
Net exchange differences - 2} ( 2)
Closing net book amount at September 30, 3 24,125  § 17,474 % 41,599
At September 30,
Cost $ 24,125  § 53,456 $ 77,581
Accumulated amortisation - 35,982) ( 35,982)

$ 24,125  § 17,474 § 41,599

2019
Membership in a
foreign Futures
Exchange Others Total

At January 1,
Cost $ 24,125 § 39,499 § 63,624
Accumulated amortisation - ( 20,792) ( 20,792)

$ 24,125  § 18,707 § 42,832
Opening net book amount at January 1, $ 24,125 $ 18,707 $ 42,832
Additions - 1,215 1,215
Reclassifications - 4,290 4,250
Disposals (cost) - ( 1,947) ( 1,947)
Disposals (accumulated amortisation) - 1,947 1,947
Amortisation expense - 7,342y ( 7,342)
Net exchange differences - 2 2
Closing net book amount at September 30,  § 24,125 $ 16,872 $ 40,997
At September 30,
Cost $ 24,125 § 43,059 $ 67,184
Accumulated amortisation - ( 26,187) ( 26,187)

$ 24,125 § 16,872 § 40,997
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(12) Pension
A. Defined benefit plan

(A) The Company has a defined benefit pension plan in accordance with the Labor Standards
Law, covering all regular employees’ service years prior to the enforcement of the Labor
Pension Act on July 1, 2005 and service years thereafter of employees who chose to continue
to be subject to the pension mechanism under the Law. Under the defined benefit pension
plan, two units are accrued for each year of service for the first 15 years and one unit for each
additional year thereafter, subject to a maximum of 45 units. Pension benefits are based on
the number of units accrued and the average monthly salaries and wages of the last 6 months
prior to retirement. The Company contributes monthly an amount equal to 2% of the
employees’ monthly salaries and wages to the retirement fund deposited with Bank of Taiwan,
the trustee, under the name of the independent retirement fund committee. Also, the Company
would assess the balance in the aforementioned labor pension reserve account by December
31, every year. If the account balance is insufficient to pay the pension calculated by the
aforementioned method to the employees expected to qualify for retirement in the following
year, the Company will make contributions to cover the deficit by next March.

(B) For the aforementioned pension plan, the Company and its domestic subsidiary recognised
pension costs of $106, $206, $318 and $617 for the three months and nine months ended
September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

(C) Expected contributions to the defined benefit pension plans of the Company for the year
ending December 31, 2021 amount to $773.

B. Defined contribution plan

(A) Effective July 1, 2005, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries have established a defined
contribution pension plan (the “New Plan™) under the Labor Pension Act (the “Act™),
covering all regular employees with R.O.C. nationality. Under the New Plan, the Company
and its domestic subsidiaries contribute monthly an amount based on 6% of the employees’
monthly salaries and wages to the employees’ individual pension accounts at the Bureau of
Labor Insurance. The benefits accrued are paid monthly or in lump sum upon termination of
employment.

(B) The pension costs under defined contribution pension plans of the Group for the three months
and nine months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019 were $4,672, $4,046, $12,794 and
$12,158, respectively,

C. The pension plans for the consolidated foreign subsidiaries are as follows:

(A) The pension plan for Yuanta Futures (Hong Kong) Limited and SYF Information (Shanghai)
Limited are in compliance with related regulations enacted by respective local governments,

(B) For the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, the foreign
subsidiaries recognised $325, $347, $1,026 and $987 of pension expense under
aforementioned regulations.
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(13) Share-based payment

A. For the nine months ended September 30, 2020, the Group’s share-based payment arrangements
were as follows:

Quantity
granted
Grant {in thousand Contract Vesting
Type of arrangement date shares) period conditions
Cash capital increa.se reserved for  February 1693 N/A Vested immediately
employee preemption 12, 2020

The share-based payment arrangements above are settled by equity.
B. The fair value of stock options granted on February 12, 2020 is measured using the Black-
Scholes-Merton-option-pricing model. Relevant information is as follows:

Amount in NTD
Exercise Expected
price option Risk-free  Fair
Type of Grant  Stock Exercise volatility life Expected interest value
arrangement date price price  (Note 1) (Note?2) dividends rate  per unit
Cash capital
increase
reserved for f;b;gazrg $55.80 § 48.00 10.43% 38days N/A  046% $ 7.82
employee ’
preemption

Note 1: It was estimated based on annualized standard deviation of returns of the Company.
Note 2: It was the period between the grant date of the capital increase (February 12, 2020) to
the payment period end date of employee stock option (March 20, 2020).
C. Expenses incurred on share-based payment transactions are shown below:

For the three months ended For the nine months ended
September 30, 2020 September 30, 2020

- § 13,239

Equity-settled $

(14) Share capital

A. As of September 30, 2020, the Company’s authorized capital was $3,500,000 consisting of

350,000 thousand shares, and paid-in capital was $2,499,763 with a par value of 10 (in dollars)
per share. All proceeds from shares issued have been collected.

Movements in the number of the Company’s ordinary shares outstanding (thousand shares) are

as follows:

2020
At January 1 232,276
Cash capital increase 17.700
At September 30 249,976
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(15)

(16)

. On November 17, 2019, the Board of Directors of the Company resolved to increase its capital

by issuing common stock, totaling 17,700 thousand shares with a par value of $10 (in dollars)
per share and the issuance price was $48 (in dollars) per share. The purpose is to fulfill working
capital needs. The proceeds amounted to $849,600 (excluding the issuance cost of $2,272). The
record date of cash capital increase was set on March 25, 2020, and the paid-in capital was
$2,499,763 after the capital increase.

. On August 20, 2020, the Board of Directors of the Company resolved to increase its capital by

issuing common stock, totaling 40,000 thousand shares with a par value of $10 (in dollars) per
share. The purpose is to fulfill working capital needs. The declaration of increase of capital in
cash was approved by FSC on September 17, 2020. On September 30, 2020, the Board of
Directors of the Company resolved the subscription price for the new shares issuance was $45.5

(in dollars) per share.

Capital surplus

Pursuant to the R.O.C. Company Act, capital surplus arising from paid-in capital in excess of par

value on issuance of common stocks and donations can be used to cover accumulated deficit or to

issue new stocks or cash to shareholders in proportion to their share ownership, provided that the

Company has no accumulated deficit. Further, the R.0O.C. Securities and Exchange Law requires

that the amount of capital surplus to be capitalised mentioned above should not exceed 10% of the

paid-in capital each year. Capital surplus should not be used to cover accumulated deficit unless the

legal reserve is insufficient.

Special reserve

September 30, 2020 December 31, 2019

September 30, 2019

Legal capital reserve $ 2,294.034 $ 2,066,874 $ 2,066,874
Special reserve-Fintech - 8,027 8,027
3 2,294,034 § 2,074,901 § 2,074,901

A. According to the “Rules Governing the Administration of Securities Firms”, 20% of the current

year's earnings, after paying all taxes and offsetting prior years' operating losses, if any, shall be
set aside as special reserve until the cumulative balance equals the total amount of paid-in capital.
The special reserve shall be used exclusively to cover accumulated deficit or to increase capital
and shall not be used for any other purpose. Such capitalization shall not be permitted unless the
Company has already accumulated a special reserve of at least 50% of its paid-in capital and
only half of such special reserve may be capitalized.

. The Company transferred provision on bad debt loss that had been set aside but not reversed to

special reserve on initial application of I[FRSs in accordance with Gin-Gwen-Zheng-Qi Letter
No. 1010032090, dated July 10, 2012. Except for offsetting operating losses or special reserve
exceeding 50% of the Company’s paid-in capital after transferring, the Company could transfer
half of special reserve as share capital.

. According to Gin-Gwen-Zheng-Qi Letter No. 1010048029, an equivalent amount of special

reserve should be set aside from earnings after tax of the current year and the undistributed
carnings of the prior period based on the decreased amount of equity. For the cumulative decrease
in equity of the prior period, the equal amount of special reserve set aside based on the
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undistributed earnings should not be distributed. If there is any reversal of the decrease in equity,
the earnings may be distributed based on the reversal proportion,

D. According to Gin-Gwen-Zheng-Quan Letter No. 10500278285 dated August 5, 2016, for
earnings from fiscal years 2016 to 2018, futures commission merchants shall set aside special
reserve from earnings after tax in the range between 0.5% to 1%. Also, starting fiscal year 2017,
the expenditure of staff education training, staff transfer or resettlement arising from the
development of financial technology could be reversed at the same amount within the above
mentioned range. However, according to Gin-Gwen-Zheng-Quan Letter No. 1080321644 dated
July 10, 2019, futures commission merchants are no longer required to set aside special reserve
starting from fiscal year 2019. And the special reserve, within the balance of special reserve set
aside in the previous years, could be reversed at the same amount for the aforementioned
expenditures.

E. In line with aforementioned regulations, the appropriation of 2019 and 2018 earnings as resolved
by the shareholders on May 27, 2020 and May 23, 2019, the Group reversed special reserve in
the amount of ($8,027), provided special reserve in the amount of $5,000 and reversed special
reserve in the amount of ($5,478), respectively.

(17)Retained earnings

A. Under the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, the current year’s earnings, if any, shall first be
used to pay all taxes and offset prior years’ operating losses and then 10% and 20% of the
remaining amount shall be set aside as legal reserve and special reserve. The remainder, if any,
to be retained or to be appropriated shall be resolved by the stockholders at the stockholders’
meeting.

B. Except for covering accumulated deficit or issuing new stocks or cash to shareholders in
proportion to their share ownership, the legal reserve shall not be used for any other purpose. The
use of legal reserve for the issuance of stocks or cash to shareholders in proportion to their share
ownership 1s permitted, provided that the distribution of the reserve is limited to the portion in
excess of 25% of the Company’s paid-in capital,

C. In accordance with the regulations, the Company shall set aside special reserve from the debit
balance on other equity items at the balance sheet date before distributing earnings. When debit
balance on other equity items is reversed subsequently, the reversed amount could be included
in the distributable earnings.

D. The appropriation of 2019 and 2018 earnings had been resolved by the stockholders at the
stockholders’ meeting. Details are summarized below:

2019 2018
Dividends per Dividends per

Amount  Share (in dollars) Amount  Share (in dollars)
Legal reserve $113,580 $100,004
Special reserve 227,160 200,009
Special reserve-Fintech (Note) - 5,000
Reversal of special reserve (Note) (  8,027) (  5,478)
Cash dividends 799,924 § 3.20 650,373 $ 2.80

Note : According to Gin-Gwen-Zheng-Quan Letter No. 10500278285, the Company shall set

aside 0.5% special reserve for staff education training, staff transfer or resettlement due
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to the development of financial technology and the protection of employee’s right. The

special reserve is reversed in accordance with the letter.

(18)Other equity items
Unrealised Currency
gains (losses) on translation
valuation differences Total
At January 1, 2020 $ 1,317,644 ($ 21,375) $ 1,296,269
Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
mcome
~Revaluation 11,624 - 11,624
-Revaluation transferred to
retained earnings ( 24,028) - ( 24,028)
Currency translation differences
-Exchange differences - ( 26,124) ( 26,124)
At September 30, 2020 $ 1,305,240 ($ 47,499 $ 1,257,741
Unrealised Currency
gains (losses) on translation
valuation differences Total
At January 1, 2019 $ 1,182,211 ($ 1,718) § 1,180,493
Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income
-Revaluation 134,819 - 134,819
-Revaluation transferred to
retained earnings ( 15,356) - ( 15,356)
Currency translation differences
-Exchange differences - 5,544 5,544
At September 30, 2019 $ 1,301,674 § 3,826 $§ 1,305,500

(19) Brokerage
For the three months ended September 30,

2020 2019
Dealers’ commissions $ 036,509 § 694,935
For the nine months ended September 30,
2020 2019
Dealers’ commissions $ 2,835,112  § 2,094,134

(20) Net gain (loss) on trading of securities

For the three months ended September 30,

2020 2019
Revenue from sale of securities - dealing $ 295,306 § 235,517
Cost from sale of securities - dealing ( 284.,494) ( 233,719)
Total $ 10,812  § 1,798
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21)

Revenue from sale of securities - dealing
Cost from sale of securities - dealing
Total

Clearance fee from consignation

Clearance fee from consignation -
non-related parties

Clearance fee from consignation -
refated parties

Total

Clearance fee from consignation -
non-related parties

Clearance fee from consignation -
related parties

Total

(22) Net gain on derivative financial instruments

Non-hedging

Gains (losses) from futures contract interests
Futures contract gains
Futures contract losses

Gains (losses) from options trading
Gains from options trading
Losses from options trading

For the nine months ended September 30,

2020 2019
$ 730,467 $ 477,604
( 707,644) ( 474,705)
$ 22,823 $ 2,899

For the three months ended September 30,

2020 2019
$ 8,723 % 10,024
9,706 8,001
$ 18,429 % 18,025
For the nine months ended September 30,
2020 2019
$ 29,552 % 29,480
28,453 23,285
$ 58,005 § 52,765

For the three months ended September 30,

Gains (losses) from exchange rate derivatives trading

Gains from exchange rate derivatives trading
Losses from exchange rate derivatives trading
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2020 2019

$ 124,794 S 662,777
( 85,420) ( 667,241)
$ 39,374 ($ 4,464)
$ 57335 $ 61,518
83,980) ( 55,058)

($ 26,645) $ 6,460
$ 65925 $ 24,973
( 57,587) ( 22,406)
$ 8,338 $ 2,567




Gains (losses) from equity derivatives trading
Gains from equity derivatives trading
Losses from equity derivatives trading

Non-hedging
Gains from derivative financial instruments
Losses from derivative finanecial instruments

Non-hedging

Gains (losses) from futures contract interests
Futures contract gains
Futures contract losses

Gains (losses) from options trading
Gains from options trading
Losses from options trading

For the three months ended September 30,

Gains (losses) from exchange rate derivatives trading

Gains from exchange rate derivatives trading
Losses from exchange rate derivatives trading

Gains (losses) from equity derivatives trading
Gains from equity derivatives trading
Losses from equity derivatives trading

Non-hedging

Gains from derivative financial instruments
Losses from derivative financial instruments
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$ 112§ 203
( 189) ( 1,221)
&) 77y (§ 1,018)

$ 248,166 § 749,471
( 227,176) ( 745,926)

$ 20,990 § 3,545

For the nine months ended September 30,
2020 2019

$ 412,277 $ 1,173,155
( 611,049) ( 1,142,694}
(% 198,772y § 30,461

$ 460,884 § 186,513
( 214,657) ( 158,204)
$ 246,227 § 28,309
$ 273,700 § 74,093
( 248,796) ( 68,802)

$ 24,904 § 5,291
$ 743§ 287
( 977 ( 1,471)
($ 234) ($ 1,184)
$ 1,147,604 § 1,434,048
( 1,075,479) ( 1,371,171)
$ 72,125 § 62,877




(23) Service charge

(24)

25)

Service charge - brokerage
Service charge - dealing
Total

Service charge - brokerage
Service charge - dealing
Total

Futures commissions

Entrusted futures transaction
Futures auxiliary business
Total

Entrusted futures transaction
Futures auxiliary business
Total

Clearance fee

Clearance fee - brokerage
Clearance fee - dealing
Total

Clearance fee - brokerage
Clearance fee - dealing
Total
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For the three months ended September 30,

2020 2019
$ 198,149 § 117,652
1,070 1,970
$ 199,219 % 119,622
For the nine months ended September 30,
2020 2019
$ 570,601 § 356,891
5,665 3,991
S 576,266 § 360,882

For the three months ended September 30,

2020 2019
$ 106,250 $ 101,386
86,267 54,802
$ 192,517 § 156,188
For the nine months ended September 30,
2020 2019
$ 320,521 % 325,069
269,026 167,309
$ 589,547 $ 462,378

For the three months ended September 30,

2020 2019
$ 147,877 § 92,386
740 1,290
$ 148,617 § 93,676
For the nine months ended September 30,
2020 2019
$ 428,019 § 279,173
3,776 2,695
$ 431,795 § 281,868




(26) Operating expenses

Employee benefit expense
Depreciation expense
Amortisation expense
Postage and telephone costs
Tax expenses

Computer information expenses
Donation

Institutional membership fees
Operating lease payments
Repair charge

Service expenses

Other expenses

Total

Employee benefit expense
Depreciation expense
Amortisation expense
Postage and telephone costs
Tax expenses

Computer information expenses
Donation

Institutional membership fees
Operating lease payments
Repair charge

Service expenses

Other expenses

Total
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For the three months ended September 30,

2020 2019

$ 176,119 § 175,907

24,333 19,265

3,367 2,583

24,339 21,853

25,510 21,782

26,827 27,761

4,999 -

2,449 10,301

414 3,377

7,584 2,007

3,748 3,855

13,093 13,527

$ 312,782 § 302,218

For the nine months ended September 30,

2020 2019

$ 557,749 § 526,482

71,113 57,329

9,511 7,342

74,871 68,325

81,571 64,603

82,271 71,988

9,552 4,511

31,618 32,211

1,198 9,678

20,083 16,829

10,220 11,337

39,693 48,370

$ 989,450 § 919,005




(27) Employee benefit expense

For the three months ended September 30,

2020 2019
Wages and salaries 5 156,275 §$ 157,949
Labor and health insurance fees 9,325 8,615
Pension costs 5,103 4,599
Post-employment benefits 288 219
Other personnel expenses 5,128 4,525
Total $ 176,119 § 175,907

For the nine months ended September 30,

2020 2019
Wages and salaries $ 501,194 $ 472,281
Labor and health insurance fees 26,350 24,872
Pension costs 14,138 13,762
Post-employment benefits 1,161 1,389
Other personnel expenses 14,906 14,178
Total $ 557,749 § 526,482

A. In accordance with the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, when distributing earnings,
the Company shall distribute bonus to the employees that account for 0.01%~5.00%, of the total
distributed amount. For the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019,
employees’ compensation was accrued at $900, $1,200, $2,700 and $3,000, respectively, and the
aforementioned amounts were recognised in salary expenses.

B. Employees’ compensation of 2019 as resolved at the meeting of Board of Directors were in
agreement with those amounts recognised in the 2019 financial statements.

C. Information about employees’ compensation of the Company as resolved at the meeting of Board
of Directors will be posted in the “Market Observation Post System” at the website of the Taiwan
Stock Exchange.

(28) Other gains and losses

For the three months ended September 30,

2020 2019

Interest income $ 162,429 $ 280,205
Gains (losses) on disposal of investments 9,078 ( 5)
(Losses) gains on disposal of property and equipment - 92
Dividend income 25,617 45,760
Net currency exchange (losses) gains ( 2,328) 2,275
(Losses) gains on financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss ( 2,108) 518
Others 15,613 12,448
Total $ 208,301 3 341,293
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(29)

For the nine months ended September 30,

2020 2019
Interest income $ 594,873 $ 838,299
Gains (losses) on disposal of investments ( 4,751) ( 1,740)
(Losses) gains on disposal of property and equipment ( 259) 92
Dividend income 87,421 112,765
Net currency exchange losses ( 11,645) ( 8,947)
(Losses) gains on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss ( 321) 1,746
Others 50,169 62,478
Total $ 715,487 § 1,004,693
Income tax
A. Income tax expense
(a) Components of income tax expense:
For the three months ended September 30,
2020 2019
Current tax:
Current tax on profits for the period $ 66,757 § 53,730
Tax on undistributed surplus earnings - -
Prior year income tax overestimation - -
Total current tax 66,757 53,730
Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of temporary
differences 245 3,769
Total deferred tax 245 3,769
Income tax expense $ 67,002 $ 57,499
For the nine months ended September 30,
2020 2019
Current tax:
Current tax on profits for the period $ 220,112 § 216,906
Tax on undistributed surplus earnings 1,877 -
Prior year income tax overestimation 3,422) ( 2,037)
Total current tax 218,567 214,869
Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of temporary
differences 9,988) 94
Total deferred tax 9,988) 94
Income tax expense $ 208,579 $ 214,963
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B. The Company’s income tax returns through 2017 have been assessed and approved by the Tax
Authority.

The Company’s subsidiary, SYF Information Limited’s income tax returns through 2018 have
been assessed and approved by the Tax Authority.

(30) Earnings per share

For the three months ended September 30, 2020
Weighted average

number of ordinary Earnings per
Amount shares outstanding Share
after tax (share in thousands) (in dollars)
Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the parent $ 276,923 249976 § 1.11
For the three months ended September 30, 2019
Weighted average
number of ordinary Earnings per
Amount shares outstanding Share
after tax (share in thousands) (in dollars)
Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the parent $ 313,143 232276 §$ 1.35
For the nine months ended September 30, 2020
Weighted average
number of ordinary Earnings per
Amount shares outstanding Share
after tax (share in thousands) (in dollars)
Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the parent $ 867,047 244,550 § 3.55
For the nine months ended September 30, 2019
Weighted average
number of ordinary Earnings per
Amount shares outstanding Share
after tax (share in thousands) (in dollars)
Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the parent $ 903,867 232,276 § 3.89
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7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(1) Parent and ultimate controlling party
The Company’s parent and ultimate controlling party is Yuanta Financial Holding Co., Ltd., which

owns 67.97% of the Company’s shares.

(2) The names and relationship of related parties

Names Relationship with the Group
Yuanta Financial Holdings The parent company of the Company
Yuanta Bank The same group of enterprises
Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd, The same group of enterprises
Yuanta Life Insurance Co., Ltd. The same group of enterprises
Yuanta Securities Investment Trust The same group of enterprises
Yuanta Securities Investment Consulting The same group of enterprises
Yuanta Securities Korea Co., Ltd. The same group of enterprises
Yuanta Securities (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. The same group of enterprises
Yuanta Securities (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. The same group of enterprises
Funds managed by Yuanta Securities Investment Trust  The funds managed by the same group of enterprises
Yuanta Cultural & Educational Foundation The directors are the key management
Taiwan Securities Association The directors are the key management
Polaries Research Related parties in substance

Refer to the same enterprise group, parent company,
substantial related parties and its major shareholders, key
management and its related investment enterprises and
other companies or institutions who is also held by the
Company's chairman of the director or general manager,
or have spouse or relatives in the same position.

Other

(3) Significant related party transactions and balances

A.Cash and cash equivalents/ operating guarantee deposits/ customer marein deposits
September 30, 2020

Operating Customer
Bank deposits guarantee deposits  margin deposifs
Fellow subsidiary
Yuanta Bank A 1,357,225  § 140,000 $ 11,453,903
December 31, 2019
Operating Customer
Bank deposits guarantee deposits  margin deposits
Fellow subsidiary
Yuanta Bank $ 1,563,503 § 140,000 $§ 9,428,093
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September 30, 2019

Operating Customer
Bank deposits guarantee deposits  margin deposits
Fellow subsidiary
Yuanta Bank $ 1,679,208 § 140,000 $ 9,616,571

B.Leverage margin contract trading client margin deposiis
September 30, 2020 December 31, 2019  September 30, 2019

Fellow subsidiary
Yuanta Bank $ 291,528 §$ 258,250 § 222244

C. Accounts receivable - related parties

September 30, 2020 December 31,2019 September 30, 2019

Fellow subsidiary
Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd. $ 3938 % 2,377 % 2,563
Yuanta Securities
{Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. 5,768 - -

$ 9,706 3 2,377 $ 2,563

D.Other receivables - related parties

September 30,2020 December 31,2019  September 30, 2019

Fellow subsidiary
Yuanta Bank $ 6,409 § 12,297 § 18,008
Yuanta Securities
(Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. 64 63 114
Yuanta Securities
Korea Co., Ltd. 1,182 52 -

$ 7,655 $ 12,412 $ 18,122

E.Leasing arrangements— [essee
a. The Group leases buildings from Yuanta Bank and Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd. with a lease

term from 2 months to 3 years and rents are paid monthly.
b. Rental expense

For the three months ended September 30,
2020 2019

Fellow subsidiary
Yuanta Bank \ 16 % -
Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd. - -
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Fellow subsidiary
Yuanta Bank
Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd.

c. Lease liabilities
(a)Outstanding balance:

For the nine months ended September 30,

2020 2019

$ 21§ -
244 -

$ 265 $ -

September 30, 2020 December 31, 2019 September 30, 2019

Fellow subsidiary

Yuanta Bank $ 1,321 2,606 § 3,033

Yuanta Securities
Co., Ltd. 10,775 26,125 31,219
$ 12,096 §$ 28,731 % 34,252

(b)Interest expense

Fellow subsidiary
Yuanta Bank

Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd.

Fellow subsidiary
Yuanta Bank

Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd.

F. Refundable deposits

For the three months ended September 30,

2020 2019
$ 3 8 6
27 71
$ 30 % 77
For the nine months ended September 30,
2020 2019
$ 12§ 23
114 245
$ 126 § 268

September 30, 2020

December 31, 2019  September 30, 2019

Fellow subsidiary
Yuanta Bank $
Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd.
Yuanta Life Insurance Co., Ltd

The directors are the key

management
Taiwan Securities Association

10,199 10,188 § 10,188

5,154 5,155 5,155

6,991 - -

300 300 300

$ 22,644 15,643 § 15,643
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(G.Futures traders’ equity

September 30, 2020 December 31, 2019  September 30, 2019

Fellow subsidiary

Yuanta Bank $ - 3 - 5 28,709
Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd. 7,642,811 3,464,477 3,352,067
Yuanta Securities (Hong Kong)
Co., Ltd. 107,193 294,013 327,876
Yuanta Securities Korea Co., Ltd. 156,634 203,846 188,076
Funds managed by fellow
subsidiary
Funds managed by Yuanta
Securities Investment Trust 34,943,006 24,237,500 24,532,737
Other related parties 63,222 53,588 266,036
$ 42,912,866 § 28,253,424 % 28,695,501

H.Accounts pavable - related parties
September 30, 2020 December 31, 2019 September 30, 2019

Fellow subsidiary
Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd. $ 23,420 $ 14,505 § 11,704

1.Other pavables - related parties

September 30, 2020 December 31, 2019 September 30, 2019

Parent Company

Yuanta Financial Holdings $ 408 § 979 % 184
Fellow subsidiary

Yuanta Securities Co., Lid. 163 262 270

Yuanta Life Insurance Co.,Ltd 2,316 - -
The directors are the key

management

Taiwan Securities Association - 15 -
Other related parties 59 40 58

$ 2946 § 1,296 $ 512
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J.Brokerage
For the three months ended September 30,

2020 2019
Fellow subsidiary
Yuanta Bank $ - 3 -
Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd. 26,765 29,420
Yuanta Securities (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. 802 406
Yuanta Securities Korea Co., Ltd. 1,154 1,469
Funds managed by fellow subsidiary
Funds managed by Yuanta Securities
Investment Trust 31,048 48,995
Other related parties 1,274 1,471
$ 61,043 §$ 81,761
For the nine months ended September 30,
2020 2019
Fellow subsidiary
Yuanta Bank $ 23 % 22
Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd. 82,766 94,740
Yuanta Securities (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. 3,075 1,896
Yuanta Securities Korea Co., Ltd. 3,089 3,141
FFunds managed by fellow subsidiary
Funds managed by Yuanta Securities
Investment Trust 115,018 148,173
Other related parties 4,881 4,124
$ 208,852 § 252,096

K.Dividend income

For the three months ended September 30,

2020 2019
Funds managed by fellow subsidiary
Funds managed by Yuanta Securities
Investment Trust $ - 5 -
For the nine months ended September 30,
2020 2019
Funds managed by fellow subsidiary
Funds managed by Yuanta Securities
Investment Trust $ 873 § -
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L.Securities commissions revenue

For the three months ended September 30,

2020 2019
Fellow subsidiary
Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd. $ 2,513 § 348
For the nine months ended September 30,
2020 2019
Fellow subsidiary
Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd. $ 5,369 § 2,586

M.Clearance fee from consignation

For the three months ended September 30,

2020 2019
Fellow subsidiary
Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd. $ 9,706 $ 8,001
For the nine months ended September 30,
2020 2019
Fellow subsidiary
Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd. $ 28,453 § 23,285

N.Other operating revenues - Co-marketing revenue

For the three months ended September 30,

2020 2019
Fellow subsidiary
Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd $ 60 $ 79
Yuanta Bank 1 -
Yuanta Securities Investment Trust - -
$ 61 § 79
For the nine months ended September 30,
2020 2019
Fellow subsidiary
Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd $ 68 $ 79
Yuanta Bank 1 -
Yuanta Securities Investment Trust 1 1
$ 70§ 30
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O.Futures commissions expense and consigned/entrusted foreign futures trading commissions
For the three months ended September 30,

2020 2019
Fellow subsidiary
Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd. $ 70,472 $ 45,172
Yuanta Securities (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. - 7
Yuanta Securities (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. 1 -
$ 70,473 $ 45,179
For the nine months ended September 30,
2020 2019
Fellow subsidiary
Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd. $ 221,774  § 137,529
Yuanta Securities (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. - 7
Yuanta Securities (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. 1 -
$ 221,775 $ 137,536

The Group engaged with Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd., Yuanta Securities (HHong Kong) Co., Ltd.,
and Yuanta Securities Korea Co., Ltd. for the purpose of futures trading and consigned/entrusted
foreign futures trading, that is, the Company acts as an agent for trading of futures contracts and
futures option contracts for its customers. The futures commission expense and payment terms do
not have any significant difference between related parties and non-related parties.
P.Service fees
For the three months ended September 30,

2020 2019
Fellow subsidiary
Yuanta Securities Investment Consulting $ 900 § 918
Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd 432 412
$ 1,332 § 1,330
For the nine months ended September 30,
2020 2019
Fellow subsidiary
Yuanta Securities Investment Consulting $ 2,700 $ 2,754
Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd 1,252 1,183
$ 3952 § 3,937
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Q.Interest income

For the three months ended September 30,

2020 2019
Fellow subsidiary
Yuanta Bank $ 29,098 §$ 28,817
Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd 14 13
The directors are the key management
Taiwan Securities Association - -
$ 29112 $ 28,830
For the nine months ended September 30,
2020 2019
Fellow subsidiary
Yuanta Bank $ 99.683 $ 98,319
Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd 41 40
The directors are the key management
Taiwan Securities Association 3 3
$ 99,727 % 98,362

Interest income includes the interest from demand deposits, time deposits, margin deposits, and

operating guarantee deposits. See Note 6(7) for details of operations guarantee deposits.

R.Interest expense

For the three months ended September 30,

2020 2019
Feliow subsidiary
Yuanta Bank $ 1 S 1
Yuanta Securities (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. 1 124
Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd. 213 813
Yuanta Securities Korea Co., Ltd. 2 103
Funds managed by fellow subsidiary
Funds managed by Yuanta
Securities Investment Trust 17 -
$ 234 $ 1,041
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For the nine months ended September 30,

2020 2019
Fellow subsidiary
Yuanta Bank $ 3 3 7
Yuanta Securities (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. 55 426
Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd. 1,319 2,223
Yuanta Securities Korea Co., Ltd. 73 304
Funds managed by fellow subsidiary
Funds managed by Yuanta
Securities Investment Trust 9,783 19,803
$ 11,233  § 22,763

S.Donation expenditure

For the three months ended September 30,

2020 2019
Yuanta Cultural & Education Foundation - 3 -
Polaris Research - -
- 5 -

For the nine months ended September 30,

2020 2019
Yuanta Cultural & Education Foundation 2,750 § 2,500
Polaris Research 1,190 1,380
3,940 $ 3,880

T.Property transactions

September 30, 2020 December 31,2019 September 30, 2019

Acquisition of financial assets
Funds managed by
fellow subsidiary
Funds managed by Yuanta
Securities Investment Trust  $

$ 132,205 § 94,365

The gains (losses) on disposal of funds managed by fellow subsidiary were $11,705, $0, ($2,200)
and ($438) for the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
The Company bought transportation equipment from Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd.. The price of

transportation equipment is $590 and classified as equipment for the nine months ended September
30, 2020.
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(4)Key management compensation

For the three months ended September 30,

2020 2019
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits h 59,547 $ 56,241
Post-employment benefits 1,481 1,264
Other long-term benefits 496 452
$ 61,524 § 57,957
For the nine months ended September 30,
2020 2019
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits $ 171,416 $ 173,592
Post-employment benefits 4,090 3,737
Other long-term benefits 1,407 1,324
$ 176,913 § 178,653
8. PLEDGED ASSETS
None.
9. SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES COMMITMENTS
Nore.
10. SIGNIFICANT LOSS FROM NATURAL DISASTER
None.

(Blank)
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11. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENT TRANSACTIONS
The Group had derivative financial instrument trading as follows:

September 30, 2020

Open Interest

Number of
Object of Buyer  contract(s) Margin paid Fair
Item transaction /Seller (lot) {received) value Remarks
Futures contracts TX Buyer 14 $§ 34786 $ 34,888
(Domestic) TX Seller 48 ( 120,957) (  119,661)
MTX Buyer 79 49,013 49,179
MTX Seller 40 ( 24,711) ( 24,952)
Stock Futures Buyer 1,223 155,381 154,706
Stock Futures Seller 493 ( 49,646) ( 49,884)
TF Buyer 1 1,170 1,189
TF Seller 1 ( 1,175) ( 1,193)
Futures contracts TX Buyer 31 78,890 77,334
(Overseas) Foreign Exchange Buyer 1 2,913 2,914
Stock Futures Buyer 46 35,455 34,646
TF Buyer 3 3,635 3,580
Metal Futures Buyer 27 77,613 77,863
Index Futures Buyer 32 46,575 46,492
Energy Futures  Buyer 3 4,229 4,261
Metal Futures Seller 50 ( 220,692) ( 213,153)
Index Futures Seller 123 ( 139,541) ( 137,568)
Grain Futures Seller 1 ( 424) ( 440}
Option contracts TXO Buy call 249 4,930 4,039
(Domestic) TXO Buy put 207 2,973 3,274
TXO Sell call 201 ( 1,765) ( 2,238)
TXO Sell put 321 ( 4,481) ( 3,487)
TGO Buy call 1 3 4
TGO Buy put 2 16 22
TGO Sell call 2 ( 7 ( 10)
TGO Sell put 2 ( 32) ( 47)
Stock Options Buy call 83 378 156
Stock Options Buy put 14 87 88
Stock Options Sell call 27 ( 103) ( 50}
Stock Options Sell put 38 ( 250) ( 186)
Option contracts TXO Buy put 6 7 3
(Overseas) TGO Sell call 3 ( 213) ( 232)

Note: The Group does not have any derivative financial instruments for hedging purpose.
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December 31, 2019

Open Interest

Number of
Object of Buyer  contract(s) Margin paid Fair
Item transaction /Seller (lot) (received) value Remarks
Futures contracts TX Buyer 2 35 4,724 § 4,798
(Domestic) TX Seller 78 (  187,763) (  187,106)
MTX Buyer 174 104,870 104,381
MTX Seller 31 ( 18,673) ( 18,591)
Stock Futures Buyer 354 110,528 117,632
Stock Futures Seller 338 ( 61,304) ( 61,832)
Metal Futures Buyer 1 536 552
TF Buyer 3 4,099 4,075
Futures contracts Index Futures Buyer 59 81,425 81,295
(Overscas)
Option contracts TXO Buy call 683 5,502 9,558
(Domestic) TXO Buy put 829 3,255 2,028
TXO Sell call 537 ( 2,441 ( 2,351)
TXO Sell put 630 ( 4,133) ( 1,865)
TGO Buy call 13 31 27
TGO Sell call 10 ( 24y ( 33)
TGO Sell put 2 ( 14) ( 12)
Stock options Buy put 3 11 6
TFO Buy call 20 19 10
TFO Buy put 40 65 36
TFO Sell call 20 ( 10) ( 3)
TEO Sell put 10 ( 63) ( 70)
Option contracts  Futures options  Buy call 76 80 84
(Overseas) Futures options  Buy put 3 20 16
Futures options  Sell put 266 ( 330) ( 270)
Futures options  Sell call 123 ( 4923 ( 552)

Note: The Group does not have any derivative financial instruments for hedging purpose.
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September 30, 2019

Open Interest
Number of
Object of Buyer  contract(s) Margin paid Fair
Item transaction /Seller (lot) (received) value Remarks
Futures contracts TX Buyer 29 § 62,140 § 62,740
(Domestic) X Seller 99 ( 215,161) (  214,295)
MTX Seller 457 ( 247,483)(  247,409)
Stock Futures Buyer 456 128,333 128,646
Stock Futures Seller 158 ( 26,330) ( 26,080)
Metal Futures Seller 145 ( 80,937) ( 81,715)
Futures contracts Metal Futures Buyer 21 100,233 96,010
{Overseas) Index Futures Seller 115 ( 49,055) ( 48,511)
Grain Futures Buyer 489 59,342 59,210
Option contracts TGO Buy call 92 860 1,783
(Domestic) TGO Buy put 67 571 766
TGO Sell call 139 ( 1,578) ( 857)
TGO Sell put 100 ( 944) ( 252)
TXO Buy call 938 8,352 6,816
TXO Buy put 293 1,487 1,784
TXO Sell call 113 ( 888) ( 755)
TXO Sell put 818 ( 5,808) ( 6,576)
Option contracts  Futures options ~ Buy call 135 87 42
(Overscas) Futures options  Buy put 500 4,445 4,419
Futures options  Sell call 492 ( 916) ( 631)
Futures options  Sell put 8 ( 13) ( 12)

Note: The Group does not have any derivative financial instruments for hedging purpose.

(Blank)
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13. SPECIFIC INHERENT RISKS IN OPERATING AS FUTURES DEALER

(1) Credit risk is the main risk for engaging in futures brokerage business since the Group
must demand collecting trading margin deposits from customers. The credit risk occurs
when the customers fail to pay margin deposits. The Group acts as agents for trading
futures and options contracts and should pay attention to daily margin credit as to
control credit risk. Market risk is also noted in the industry due to dealer business.
Dealer business is price index sensitive, therefore, the Group pre-sets stop loss point for
risk management purposes.

{2) The specific risks of the Group’s futures brokerage business are outlined below:

Futures trading has a characteristic of low margin. Therefore, the risks of futures trading
include: when the futures market trend is unfavorable for customers, futures firms may
demand to collect additional trading margin deposits from customers to keep certain
margin level. If the customers fail to pay margin deposits in a period prescribed, futures
firms have the right to offset the contract amount of the customers by the additional
margin deposits demanded. Further, futures firms may incur losses when futures market
prices fluctuate drastically and the customers are unable to settle futures contracts.

(3) See Note 21 for significant financial risk information on futures dealer business.

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(1) General information —type of product and service of reporting segments’ income source

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by
the Chief Operating Decision-Maker, i.e. Board of Directors, that are used to make
strategic decisions. The Chief Operating Decision-Maker considers the source of
income, and the Group’s operating segments are divided into broker and dealer. The
primary source of income by each segment is as follows:

Broker: Consigned and entrusted to futures trading and financial instruments trading
approved by relevant regulations in the R.O.C.

Dealer: Used capital funds to engage in trading stocks, futures, options, and other
derivatives financial instruments approved by relevant regulations in the R.O.C.

(2) Measurement of segment information

A.Information on segment profit (loss); measurement of assets and liabilities

Measurement of profit (loss), assets and liabilities of the Group are consistent with
Note 4 — Summary of significant accounting policies. Measurement of profit (loss)
performance is based on income before tax.

In order to establish a fair and reasonable performance evaluation, the Group would
offset the income and expense incurred internally from each segment for external
financial reporting purposes.

Income and expense are classified directly to the segment where they belong to. For
expense incurred indirectly, it will consider its classification based on the usage
purpose by proportionally dividing into each segment when a reasonable rate can be
assigned. Otherwise, it will be classified as “Other operating segment” when a
reasonable rate cannot be assigned.
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B. Identifying factors for reportable segments

The measurement of segment performance will be evaluated periodically to ensure
that it achieves the goals of the Group. The results of its evaluation will be used as
the framework for resource allocation.

(3) Information on segment profit (loss)

For the nine months ended September 30, 2020

Other
operating
Brokerage segment Dealing segment segment Total
Segment revenue  $ 2,388,666 $ 120,863 § 69 $ 3,009,598
Segment profit $ 1,148,544 §$ 33,133 ($ 106,051) $ 1,075,626
For the nine months ended September 30, 2019
Other
operating
Brokerage segment Dealing segment segment Total
Scgment revenue  $ 2,164,662 § 68,309 ($ 8) $ 2,232,963
Segment profit $ 1,245,111 ($ 13,299) ($ 112,982) § 1,118,830

Note  The Group’s Chief Operating Decision-Maker does not use segment assets and
liabilities as a basis for decision making, therefore, the Group does not have to
disclose the assets and liabilities of the operating segments.

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
None.
16. RELATED INFORMATION OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS

(1) Financing activities to any company or person: None.

(2) Endorsements and guarantees provided: None.

(3) Acquisition of real estate properties exceeding $300 million or 20% of the Company’s
paid-in capital: None.

(4) Disposal of real estate properties exceeding $300 million or 20% of the Companies’
paid-in capital: None.

(5) Handling fee discounts on transactions with related parties in excess of NT$5,000,000 :
None.

(6) Accounts receivable from related parties reaching $100 million or over 20% of paid-in
capital balance: None.

(7) Other: Significant transactions between parent company and subsidiaries:

~B1~



!N@!

‘Arerpisqns 01 Leipisqng ¢
‘Auedures juared 0y AmIpisqng *7
“AreIpisqns o} Auedwod Juared °|

SMO[[0] SB PI[aqe| 218 A3y} pue santedIaunod 2 Ynam sdiysuciieos jo sad4 sang are o104 17 210N
*] UIOI PRISqUUNU 2Je SSLIBIPISqNS “IopIo [enuanbas ayp 01 Swploooy 7

‘Auedwios wared ayy Joj g 1

12101 Jo (o) a8vjuaniag

SUON0BSIRI) JO S[IBIA(]

SMO[[O] SB JU2sa1dal UuN[03 "oN 2} UT SIAQUIN SY ] 1| 910N
. n

"SIOWIOSN3 [BIAUIT W01 63L asuadxa 1sa105U] z "L 00 SaJnn, BIuen & payur'] (Suoy Suop]) saimnyg Bjuen x I
%t0°0 UL WROYSLS ON

SIWIOISND [RIGUST UIOI] . AWIOOE J5aIBI] z "L “QD SanIn,j BEEn & panur (Suoy Fuop) samming eueny I
%000 1D JUBMUSIS 0 ’

oo tp HE ! m.EoZ : Q) seImn ] BjuRn panwi (Suoy Suopy) saining eiwen ; !

o SIDWOISND (BRI I c6b UOISSIULIOS SN0, z art1 oo e

%zl S0URIYIP WEANJIUFIS ON|

"SIUOJEND [e19uaT wog < oFeroyorg T (LT 00 S21njn{ BIUEN & payur] (Sucy Suol) saanin,| eiuen g I
%L1'0 20UISIIIP WEITTIS ON| SELE ejuEn I

I . n

SIDUMSHD E._QCQM wog " Lmba SIAPEI] SaIn,] z (LT QD seming ejuen § panung AMEOM Suoy) seIng vy A
50 souazap ueaymdis opy| Y52 O1¢ Y

"SIDWOISNY [RISUST Wog . ysodap WS w z LT 00 SN BIUEA & payun (Suoy Suoy) saming enren I
%510 souatapp sy o €C1L 871 ' .

‘SIAWCISND RIsusT wog CEVGh uses) z (LT 00 SN, BjuBn panunr] (8uoy Suopy) saming eleng 1
%500 SOUSISEIP RIS ON

"Sieurogsna [eraual wog cc astadxa Jsaiou| I panuir] (Suoy] SuoE]) SaIMIN,] BIIEN & ‘AL1 © 0D sy eluen g 0
%000 SOUSISIIP WBIIRITIS ON

‘SI9W03SN) [EIeUE w0y 68L SWOoUT 152123U] | panun (Fuoy SUOH) samin,g epren g ‘dlT QD samng BjIen § 0
%£0°0 AJUDISPIP IMEIISIS ON

‘siauolsnd jessusd wiog celvc UOISSIUNIOD SN 1 panun-y (Suoy Suopy) somin,g ejuen x ‘(117 Q) Samyn,] ven § 0
%L10 ssuasayIp yresgmusis oN| 7 ¢ o

"SIAUI0ISNI [BIUSS WHOY 6t afersyorg I panury (Suos] Fuoy) somyn,{ ejuen X "(LLT <00 saming vluen g 0
%200 2USIYIIP WBAIUSIS Op]

I s . . en

"SISWOISND [EISUSE WO e Lol Annba siepen saamng I P (Suoy] SucH) saming wwen g AL Q0 semng vueny t
%020 VUIJIP NFRIYTUSIS ON] )

"SIAWIOISND [RI3USE Wog ‘ nsodap wiren I panun (Suoy SUor]) seanin, eaen 4 "ALT 0D S2anIn, vjuen g 0
“l6°0 souasapp wresds onf 00F ¢T6 ) .

SIWOSTO [B13U33 Woy 0cEL ysen I payun (Suoy SuoH} sanng wjuen & ‘LT 00 $aamyn,] Blen A 0
%1070 20uURIAYJIp NAIUFIS ON (1 2100

S19SSE JO SONUIAS] Suompuos) unowy mneavf (g 210N) £edisuno) Kuedwon aN
paleprosuos diysuonerey




iﬂ@f

"QUON] :seueIpIsgns pue Aueduiod Juaied U9omIaq SUOTIOBSURI] JUBDIIUSIS 1210 "D

"suop :fendeo ut-pred Jo o407 1940 10 TOI[TW (01§ Suryoear sanied paje[el WOIL S[qRAIIIDI SJUNOJDY "y

"BUON] : UOI}[IW G§ JO $$90X2 Ul sanred poje[al yiim SUOHOBSURT UO SIUN0ISIP 93] Surjpuey g

"sUON :[endes ut-pred s Auedwio)) ay) Jo 9,07 10 UOIIW (£ Surpaaoxo sontadord a1e1so [ea1 Jo TesodsiT (]
"ouoN ‘[epdes ur-pied s Aueduio)) ayj Jo 9407 0 uoI[IuI 0¢$ Surpasoxa santadoid syeyss [eal Jo uonismbay )
"AUON :PapIaoid sI9jURIENS pUE SJUSASIOpUY] g

"ouoN :uosiad 10 Auedwioo Aue 01 sananoe Suroueul] "y

:SMO[]OJ SB ST JSAI)UT TUI[[ONUOCD 1I2AIPUI 10 JO2IIP YIM SATUBdUWOD 92)SDAUT UO UOTIBULIONU] (7)

"UOTIRUIIOTUT 210wl 10T (€ )} 0N 01 Jojax oseord ‘070z ‘41 AInr wo uonepinbiy sy pajaduwios

payun ] (BoweS) UONBWION] JAS ISASMOH PINWIT UONBUWLONU] JAS JO AIBIPISqNS PAUMO-A[JOym B sem pajiwur] (owes) UOHBWION] JAS 910N

sa01A1ag 01700101 "ON P 00 P00
SILRIPISANS § - (€819 H(egr'e ) - COL18T  j%00°001  |000'SE 000°0SE  [oo00sE ASoouypal| JeHAT ID-BUayZ | 91°01'ZI0T | Ueae] | uotewLgju) saann |
UOTIBLUIO U] _usMa-UI AAS BIUEn A
£r6C££00660 "ON ‘P11 “0D i
SaueIpIsqng | - Orsy1  OPSPT $) ceceCIs (es6'ors  |%00001  [000°%E 1L6EE0' T [ILG'EE0T SNAES 1T IO-8UAYZ | ¢'T10E0T SUOS | (3o BuoH) _.MMEMW
AR L & (il |3 L v [e1oUERUL] : chI sarmm, ejuen A
-UaMD)-ULD ejuen
210N pouad  {Auedwios oyi| 2a3soaumr | soys3Aur anjea (e4) (spuesnoy | 107 °IE 020T ‘0f SATBANDE Iaquunp oep dniag |uonesop|  9¢3svAu] 101S3ALL
W31mo Ag ay jo (ssof} ay yoog | digsicusp ur) Iaquana(] Jaquiopdag ssaursng pasorddy 0g,1
a1 10j pazZiuSeaal |2WodUT JaN [JO anusaol S2IBYS JO e se 1e se LA
puapiap (ssop) Gunetadg Iaquunpy dueeqg anueedg
yseD awosur
LETR ST 0202 JUTOWE JUSTISIAUL [BIIU]
‘0€ Jaquaidag 1e SE play saIeyg T

“SMO[[0J SB 218 UOTIRILIOJUI Paje[al pue ‘suorjeao] ‘sotuedwod a31saAul Jo sswen (1)

(VNIHD ANV INIVIA NI SHEZISTANI ONIANTONT TONJ STALSTANI NO NOILVINIOANI 21




?W@l

"QUON :SBaIE L) Y} Ul seruedwiod J9U30 g8noy) A[1921rpul Jo AJJ00IIp BUN,) PUBTUIBJA UI SI9)S2AUT )IM PIJONPU0D SUCTIORSULT) juedljiudig (7)

"SIE[|O(] UBMIB], M2N Ul P25saidxo aIe S[qe) ST} UI SI2QUINU At [, :f 9)ON
SLUWG D
"VdD 8. Auedwoo Juared - QY Aq paIsane puB PAIpNE SIe JBt)) SJUSUINIE)S [BIoURUNf Y] g
D707 Ul Wy Surumoode yua digsuone[al 9aendoos Sey Yanja TLIY SHIHMOIoe |BUOHEWISINN AQ Pejselle PUe palipne 218 Jel) SJUOIUaIR]S [RIURUL 24T, 'Y
1$3LI0F01E0 9211 SULMO[[0} 9y JO 3U0 JO Jaqumu oyl ul uonugosal (SS0[) SWOdUL JUIWISIAUT JO] SISEq o) a1eopi] (7)
"poirad sif1 Furmp yyoad Aue 394 j0u pey pue 25els uoneodioour SU) UI 1S SBA 93)SIAUL Y JI pIESIpUI 5 pinoys 1 (1)
‘uwnpoo pord syl Funmp pasiugeoal (Ssof) ulen, a1 uf g 910N
BUIY) pueuiely Ul Auedwod B Ul }saaul 0} ARIpISqns € ySnony] (g)
*5o8[d paIf) 911 UL JUSTUISSAUT 102JIpUL YSNOR) BUIY) PUBIUIEIAL JO SSIINUA UI 1S2AUINY] (7)
"BUIYY) PURJUIBIA JO SIMIIUS UT JUSWSIAL 30241(T (1)
SMO[[0] 5B ‘SUOIIO2S-qNS D211 O] PAZIIOTAEs are sadA) JUSUNSIAU] 1] AJON

965°198°C $ | 000°FLI $ | 60T°LST g

VHOIA JO UOISSTIIUIO,) JUSWLSSAU] oYt Aq
posedy BUIYD PUBIUIRJA] UI SIUSTHSAAUT U0 SUI[I8)

(VAOW)
SIEBJY J[MOU0SH Jo AJISIUTA 211 JO UOISSIUIWO))

JUAUNSIAUT 21 Aq peactdde junowie JusunseAu]

0207 ‘0 10qaydag Jo St BUID) PURIUIE 0)
UBMIB], WOJ] 90URIIMIAI JO JUNOUIR PAIR[NIINIDY

213 ‘aIeMIOS
somdwos Jo Qm%mumﬂmw
- €o6°cll § [(Z90¥ $)| 001 (290'v $)| 60T°LS1$ | - $1- s|eoTisT § (€) 607°LS1$ |wondnpoad pue ——
juowdofaaap| - 3Ul
¥ yoJeasay dAS
pouad Jo pua| 0Z0z “OF (o¥4) (%) Swpjoy | eeysaaul | uemre], | juncuwre | junowe | vemrel wog | (] 910N) rendeo SAMIATIOR BULYD
18 uemiey 01 | squaidag (z sa10N) JUSUNSIAUL syl Jo wioly | PRUINSY | PAISAAUT | JuaLUsaAUl poyow penss] | sseuisng UIR[A] | pugjuIgly
pauwmnja wed Jose poriad 1vaIIpuL (sso]) [wwunsaau ugia.aoj WDUNSIAUY Ui 991941
pajenumooy | anfea yoog | 9y) Suninp 10 J0211p awoout uFra10y Jo 2oueeq JosweN
paziudodar | jo oBeiusolog BN |Jo 9oue[eq poriad siyp Swuwday
{sso[) ureny Suipuzg | VI JUSTHSAOTI
JUTI}S2AL]

‘uoryeuIour o1seq (1)
VNIHD ANV INIVIA NI LNHW.LSFANI LOTIIANI NO NOILVIAR-OANI A0 TAINSOTOSIA 61
"QUON

HALLVINASHIdHE ANV SH21440 HONVEL d1 ONLLIHS NO NOILVIARIOANT A0 HANSOTISIA 81




20. MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

Futures commission merchants, whose stocks are listed for trading on the stock exchange or over-the-
counter exchange, shall disclose the name, the number of shares held and shareholding ratio of the
shareholders with a shareholding ratio of 5 percent or greater.

. Shares Number of shares held Shareholding ratio
Major Shareholder (thousands)
Yuanta Financial Holdings Co.,Ltd. 169,897 67.97%
Cathay Life Insurance Co.,Ltd. 21,274 8.51%
Luo Sheng Fong Co., Ltd. 15,714 6.28%

21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(1) Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The Group adopted to strengthen risk-adjusted return on capital,
which allocated the Group’s capital effectively.

(2) Financial instruments

The methods of reporting derivative financial instruments on financial statements: please refer to
the Notes 6(1), 6(2), 6(22).

(3) Fair value information

A. The different levels that the inputs to valuation techniques are used to measure fair value of
financial and non-financial instruments have been defined as follows:

Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

Inputs that are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities. An active market has to satisfy all the following conditions: a market in
which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and
volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. The fair value of the
Group’s investment in listed stocks, beneficiary certificates and derivative instruments
with quoted market prices is included in Level 1.

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).
The fair value of the Group’s investment in off-the-run financial bonds is included in
Level 2.

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data. The fair
value of the Group’s investment in equity investment without active market is included
in Level 3.

B. Financial instruments not measured at fair value

(A) The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, margin deposits, futures trading margin
receivable, security leading deposits, accounts receivable, accounts receivable — related
parties, other receivable, other receivable — related parties, leverage margin contract trading
client margin deposits, other current assets, operating guarantee deposits, clearing and
settlement funds, refundable deposits, futures traders’ equity, leverage margin contract
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transaction traders’ equity, accounts payable, accounts payable — related parties, other
payables, other payables — related parties and other current liabilities are approximate to their

fair values.

(B) The fair value of financial assets at amortised cost - financial bonds is determined by using
valuation techniques and categorized within Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. These
valuation techniques maximize the use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. As of September 30, 2019, the carrying
amounts and fair values of financial assets at amortised cost - financial bonds were $62,056
and $62,112, respectively. As of September 30, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the Group did

not hold financial assets at amortised cost.

. The related information of financial instruments measured at fair value by level on the basis of

the nature, characteristics and risks of the assets and liabilities as at September 30, 2020,

December 31, 2019 and September 30, 2019 is as follows:

September 30, 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Recurring fair value measurements
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Listed stocks $ 51,951 $ - 3 - $ 51,951
Beneficiary certificates 94,660 - - 94,660
Futures 58,135 - - 58,135
Onptions 7,591 - - 7,591
Derivatives Assets - Leverage
margin contract transaction - 34,122 - 34,122
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Equity securities 549,896 - 1,496,412 2,046,308
Total $ 762,233 § 34,122 $ 1,496,412 $ 2,292,767
Liabilities
Recurring fair value measurements
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss
Options $ 6,250 3§ - 3 - 3 6,250
Security borrowing payable - non-hedging 138,484 - - 138,484
Total $ 144,734 $ - $ - § 144,734
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December 31, 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Recurring fair value measurements
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Listed stocks $ 74,289 $ - 3 - $ 74,289
Beneficiary certificates 188,239 - - 188,239
Futures 24,783 - - 24,783
Options 11,765 - - 11,765
Derivatives Assets - Leverage
margin contract transaction - 17,218 - 17,218
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Equity securities 581,447 - 1,518,539 2,099,986
Total $ 880,523 § 17,218 $ 1,518,539 $ 2,416,280
Liabilities
Recurring fair value measurements
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss
Options b 5,156 $ - 3 - 3 5,156
Security borrowing payable - non-hedging 66,943 - - 66,943
Total $ 72,099 $ - $ - $ 72,099
September 30, 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Recurring fair value measurements
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Listed stocks $ 31,561 $ - $ - $ 31,561
Beneficiary certificates 165,005 - - 165,005
Futures 61,421 - - 61,421
Options 15,610 - - 15,610
Derivatives Assets - Leverage
margin contract transaction - 16,189 - 16,189
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Equity securities 184,517 - 1,529,871 1,714,388
Total $ 458,114 § 16,189 $ 1,529,871 $ 2,004,174
Liabilities
Recurring fair value measurements
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss
Options 5 9,083 $ - 8 - A 9,083
Security borrowing payable - non-hedging 61,143 - - 61,143
Total $ 70,226 $ - 3 - $ 70,226
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D. The methods and assumptions the Group used to measure fair value are as follows:

(A) The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the consolidated balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices
are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the closing price. These instruments are included in level 1.
Instruments included in level 1 comprise primarily equity instruments and debt instruments
classified as financial assets/financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.

(B) The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximize the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little
as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

(C) If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3.

(D) Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
a. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

b. Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value
for the remaining financial instruments.

E. For the nine months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, there were no transfer between Level
1 and Level 2.

F. The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the nine months ended
September 30, 2020 and 2019.

Equity securities

January 1, 2020 $ 1,518,539
(zains and losses recognised in other comprehensive income (Note) ( 22,127)
September 30, 2020 $ 1,496,412
Equity securities
January 1, 2019 $ 1,404,019
Gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive income (Note) 125,852
September 30, 2019 $ 1,529,871

Note: Recorded as unrealised valuation gain or loss on financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income.
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G. The following is the quantitative information of significant unobservable inputs to valuation
model used in Level 3 fair value measurement:

Fair value at Valuation Significant Range Relationship of
September 30, 2020 technique Unobservable input (weighted average) inputs to fair value
Non-derivative

equity
. . . The higher the
- Price t
Non-listed ¢ 1,496,412 Market - Priceto camings 28.09 multiple, the higher
stocks approach  ratio multiple .
the fair value
The higher the
Discount Of 40% discount Of
marketability marketability, the
lower the fair value
Fair value at Valuation Significant Range Relationship of

December 31, 2019  technique Unobservable input (weighted average) inputs to fair value

Non-derivative

equity
. . . The higher the
Nowlisted g isigsa Market o Pricefo cumings 2836 multiple, the higher
pP P the fair value
The higher the
Discount of discount of
v 40% -
marketability marketability, the
lower the fair value
Fair value at Valuation Significant Range Relationship of

September 30, 2019  technique Unobservable input (weighted average) inputs to fair value

Non-derivative

equity
. . . The higher the
fﬁ)‘:&?te‘i $ 1,529,871 hiiﬁiach '1 e :z;i;sl‘:gs 27.96 multiple, the higher
the fair value
The higher the
Discount of 40% discount of
marketability marketability, the

lower the fair value

H. The valuation process for fair values classified at Level 3 is the responsibility of the risk
management department, which verifies the financial instrument’s fair value. The result of the
evaluation is then reviewed and approved by the risk management department of the Group’s
parent company. The risk management department evaluates the independence, reliability,
consistency, and representativeness of the information source, and periodically verifies the
valuation model and calibrates the valuation parameters, ensuring the valuation process and
valuation results are in accordance with IFRS’s requirements.

I. Use of different valuation models or assumptions may result in difference measurement. The
following is the effect of profit or loss or of other comprehensive income from financial
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instruments categorized within Level 3 if the valuation input of financial instrument classified
in Level 3 moves upward or downward by 1%:

September 30, 2020
Recognised in other comprehensive income

Favourable change Unfavourable change

Financial assets
Equity instrument $ 4,988 ($ 4,988)

December 31, 2019
Recognised in other comprehensive income

Favourable change Unfavourable change

Financial assets
Equity instrument $ 5,062 ($ 5,062)

September 30, 2019
Recognised in other comprehensive income

Favourable change Unfavourable change

Financial assets
Equity instrument $ 5,099 ($ 5,099)

(4) System of risk management

A. Objectives of risk management

The Group controls any potential losses that might incur in operations within its tolerable limits
by increasing completeness of risk management mechanism, establishing efficient risk
management measures, models and systems, and monitoring the changes of whole risks strictly.
The Group also puts efforts in allocating its capital more efficiently to raise the risk adjusted
return on capital.

B. Risk management system

The Group’s risk management system is in compliance with the “Risk Management Policy” of
Yuanta Financial Holding Co., Ltd. and “Risk Management Practice Principles for Futures
Commission Merchants” of Taiwan Futures Exchange. The Group has established the Risk
Management Policy, which is the internally highest risk management standard authorized by the
Board of Directors, comprising objectives, scopes, powers and responsibilities, and procedures
of risk management.

C. Organizational structure of risk management

(A) The Group’s organizational structure of risk management comprises the Board of Directors,
Audit Committee, high management level, Risk Management Department, Legal
Compliance Department, Auditing Office, each business unit and each functional committee;
they all together form three lines of defense for risk management.

a. First line of defense: this includes each business unit and each functional committee,
whose personnel are serving in the operational or administration division and have
responsibilities for risk identification, risk assessment and risk control.

b. Second line of defense: this includes high management level, Risk Management
Department and Legal Compliance Department, which are responsible for risk monitoring,
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risk management and taking measures in response to risk issues in accordance with the
Group’s Risk Management Policy. The Group also takes part in the Risk Management
Committee of Yuanta Financial Holding Co., Ltd. for integration of risk control and
management in the Group.

. Third line of defense: this includes the Board of Directors, Audit Committee and Auditing

Office. Auditing Office conducts audits especially in the risk consideration to ensure every
risk is under control.

(B) The function of each unit in the structure of risk management of the Group is as follows:

a.

The Board of Directors: The Board of Directors has ultimate responsibility for risk
management on all businesses and operations in the Group; it shall be fully aware of every
risk exposure to the Group, and then determines tolerable limit for every risk, allocates
resources effectively, and authorizes relevant departments to execute risk measures for
the achievement of effective risk management. The Board of Directors hears risk
management and other related reporting by Risk Management Department, Auditing
Office and Finance Department regularly to evaluate the impact of every risk and the
impact on capital allocation, and determines responding strategies.

. Audit Committee: Audit Committee directs the execution of the risk management system

under the commission of the Board of Directors; its main duties inciude review of the
Group’s risk scopes and risk toleration capability, of the Risk Management Policy and
relevant principles, and of annual authorized acceptable limit of risk of each kind, as well
as directing the execution of the risk management system.

Risk Management Department: this department, an independent department under the
Board of Directors, is responsible for market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk
management, and controls operational risk with Auditing Office together; its main duties
include daily risk monitoring and assessments of risk management affairs. Risk
Management Department exercises its authority independently from business units and
trading activities, and holds accountability to the Board of Directors directly. By
employing the risk management information system, Risk Management Department
monitors trading conditions in the futures market during the trading time every day and
performs analyses after the closing of trading time; it also checks the use status of risk
limits authorized to each business unit, and assesses risk exposures and extent of risk
concentration, and submits risk management reports regularly.

. Auditing Office: Auditing Office, an independent department under the Board of

Directors, is responsible for legislation and internal control system compliance
management, operational risk management and supervision of operational risk
management procedures. In accordance with the internal control rules of regulatory
authorities, and adjusted operational risk management procedures appropriately in line
with the amendments to the regulations of regulatory authorities, Taiwan Futures
Exchange and Chinese National Futures Association or for the changes in the Group’s
business.

Legal Compliance Department: this department is responsible for review of legal
compliance for the Group’s businesses, operations, trading and transaction
contracts/documents and offering legal options on those aspects and pushing the
execution of legal compliance within the Group together with Auditing Office.

Each business unit: Each business unit is liable for the first-line risk management. The
directors of cach business unit are in charge of the whole risk management on businesses
and trading activities of the unit, including analyzing and controlling risk exposures,

~T1~



drawing up responding plans and taking measures against risk when necessary, and also
conveying related information to Risk Management Department to ensure the risk control
mechanism and procedures are all effectively executed, and comply with the legislation
and the Group’s Risk Management Policy and regulations.

D. Procedures of risk management

The Group’s procedures of risk management include risk identification, risk measurement, risk
management and risk reporting. The design of these procedures is to ensure all risks faced by the
Group can be effectively controlled.

(A) Risk identification: The Group identifies risks, through business and product analyses, that
may arise during the courses of operations, including market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk,
operational risk, legal risk and model risk, and finds out risk factors of risk exposure of each
kind, selects appropriate method of risk measurement, and establishes risk indexes and
judgment principles and risk control procedures that can be connected to the internal
information system.

(B) Risk measurement: The Group measures market risk by using scenario analysis, sensitivity
analysis and VaR model and credit risk by using the credit rating system, option pricing
model (ex. KMV) and following the Group’s credit risk assessment rules. Operational risk is
controlled by establishing standard operating procedures, establishing internal and external
event notification mechanism, reviewing current operating procedures and employing
operational risk management methods.

(C) Risk management: Risk monitoring and control are performed through the use of risk
management tools, establishment of acceptable limits of risks and division of authority and
responsibilities. Different risk management tools and information systems and statements are
developed and employed for different risks to raise the efficiency and quality of risk
management.

(D) Risk reporting: Risk information and risk management performing results are compiled as
risk management statements or reports. These results are disclosed periodically and provided
as a reference to the management in making risk management policy and rules.

E. Hedging and risk diminishing strategies

The Group has established hedging tools and hedging mechanisms for risks of each business
based on its capital scale and risk toleration capability. Through hedging mechanisms, the Group
may restrict risks within authorized limits, and employ authorized financial instruments, based
on market conditions, business strategies, characteristics of commodities and risk management
rules, to adjust risk positions within acceptable levels.

(5) Market risk

The Group’s financial assets include bank deposits, government bonds, treasury bonds, bank
debentures, negotiable certificates of deposit, commercial papers or other short-term notes and bills
authorized by Ministry of Finance, domestic listed stocks, securities investment trust funds, offshore
funds authorized by competent authorities to be raised and sold in ROC, futures trust funds, futures
trading listed in Article 5 of Futures Trading Act, hedging trading of bond options and other financial
instruments authorized by competent authorities. The fair value of these financial assets would be
changed by the fluctuations of market prices or interest rates.

To manage market risk, the Group has established the Rules of Financial Instruments Investment
Risk Management, including Rules of Dealer Trading Risk Management and Rules of Medium and
Long-term Securities Investment Risk Management, and established various control mechanisms
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based on the characteristics of financial instrument risks, such as position limits, stop-loss amounts
and exception management. The Group also conducts market risk quantitative management by
employing VaR model in the measurement and control of market risk of each position.

Through the VaR model, the Group measures market risk by estimating maximum possible losses
of the trading positions for the next day at the 99% confidence level. According to the types of
trading, the VaR of equity trading, commodity trading, foreign-exchange-rate trading and interest-
rate trading arc as follows:

<Table>VaR of Trading of Different Types

Period: January 1 ~ September 30, 2020
Amount in thousands of NTD

Foreign
Type of Trading Equity Commodity  Exchange Rate Interest Rate Total
September 30, 2020 $ 2,055 § 515 % 701 $ - $ 2356
Average 4,174 279 397 - 4,042
Lowest 551 8 270 - 5%0
Highest 49719 1,501 1,676 - 48,760
Period: January 1 ~ September 30, 2019
Amount in thousands of NTD
Foreign
Type of Trading Equity Commodity  Exchange Rate Interest Rate Total
September 30, 2019 $ 1,878 § 2,324 § 430 % - 5 2,701
Average 10,981 1,476 2,100 - 11,785
Lowest 875 - 419 - 799
Highest 28,244 5,028 8,441 - 27,564

Note 1 : Trading included futures dealer trading and securities dealer trading but not including
medium- and long-term securities investment.

Note 2 : Total category of value-at-risk may be less than the amount of value-at-risk of equity,
commodity, foreign exchange rate and interest rate, that’s due to diversification effects
between different categories.

To ensure the VaR model can reasonably, completely and correctly measure the maximum potential
risk of the financial instrument or portfolio, the Group continues to run model validation and back
testing to ensure that the Group’s VaR model can reasonably measure maximum potential losses of
financial instruments or portfolios.
(6) Credit risk
A. The Group is exposed to credit risk from financial trading, including issuer credit risk,
counterparty credit risk and underlying asset credit risk.
(A) Issuer credit risk occurs when issuer (or guarantor) of the financial debt instruments held by
the Group or bank with which the Group deposits money fails to fulfill contractual obligations
(or guarantor’s obligations) because of its default, bankruptcy or liquidation, which would
cause a financial loss to the Group.

(B) Counterparty credit risk occurs when counterparty of the financial instrument transaction
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undertaken by the Group fails to fulfill settlement or payment obligation on the appointed
day, which would cause a financial loss to the Group.

(C) Underlying asset credit risk refers to the risk of loss that may arise from deterioration of
credit quality of the underlying asset linked to the financial instruments or increasing of credit
risk premium or downgrade of credit rating or contract default.

B. The financial assets of the Group with credit risk include bank deposits, debt securities, OTC
derivative trade, repurchase agreement/reverse repurchase agreement of bonds (bills), deposits
for securities borrowing and lending trade, margins for futures trade, other margins and
receivables.

(A) Analysis of concentration of credit risk
a. Geographic location:

Percentages of credit risk exposure amounts of the Group’s financial assets by geographic
area were as follows (see the table below): As of September 30, 2020, the highest was
Taiwan with 85.58%, the second was Europe with 7.59% and the third was Asia (excluding
Taiwan) with 5.68%. Compared to the same period last year, the proportion of investments
in Europe has increased slightly in this period.

September 30, 2020 December 31, 2019 September 30, 2019

Taiwan $ 83902355 % 61,515,791 % 63,154,944

Asia (excluding Taiwan) 5,565,274 4,717,801 5,293,569

Burope 7,444,069 3,125,186 2,277,302

America 1,128,850 1,807,520 2,182,355

Other 1,564 1,611 1,668

Total 8 98,042,112 § 71,167,909 % 72,909,838
b. Industry:

Percentages of credit risk exposure amounts of the Group’s financial assets by industry
were as follows (see the table below): Financial institutions accounted for 99.85% with
other industry sectors representing less than 1%. Credit risk is concentrated in financial
institutions because the Group’s own capital and margins received from customers were
both deposited with financial institutions, debt securities held by the Group were issued or
guaranteed by banks, and counterparties of derivative trade undertaken by the Group were
banks, futures clearing and settlement institution and re-consigned futures firms. The
percentages distribution did not change significantly in this period compared to the
corresponding period of last year.

September 30, 2020  December 31,2019  September 30, 2019

Financial institutions $ 97,892,634 §$ 71,061,489 3§ 72,821,307
Public enterprises 4 4 4
Other 149,474 106,416 88,527
Total $ 98,042,112 % 71,167,909 § 72,909,838
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(B) Analysis of credit risk levels
a. Credit risk rating is categorized into Excellent, Standard, Below standard, Other and the

definitions are illustrated below:

(a) Excellent: The underlying position or an entity is capable of fulfilling its financial
commitment even if facing significant uncertain factors or exposed to an adverse
condition.

(b) Standard: The underlying position or an entity’s capacity to fulfill the contractual
obligation is at an acceptable level, and any adverse movement toward operation,
finance or economy could further weaken its capacity to fulfil financial commitment.

(c) Below standard: The underlying position or an entity’s capacity to fulfill the
contractual obligation is weak, and the fulfillment of the contractual commitment
depends on the advantageous movement in operating environment and financial status.

(d) Other: This level shows that the counterparty or the underlying asset does not fulfill
contractual obligations, or for other reasons fails to (or not) be applied with the internal
credit risk ratings.

b. As of September 30, 2020, the credit quality levels of the Group’s financial assets were
classified as follows: Excellent is 96.86%, standard is 2.98%. The result of credit quality
level classification did not change significantly in this period compared to the
corresponding period of last year with financial assets with standard credit quality

decreasing in proportion slightly.

September 30, 2020  December 31, 2019 September 30, 2019

Excellent $ 94,959,327 $ 66,793,869 $ 69,626,426
Standard 2,923,215 4,276,467 3,191,986
Below standard 159,570 97,573 91,426
Total $ 08,042,112 § 71,167,909 § 72,909,838

C. The Group adopts following assumptions under IFRS 9 to assess whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on that instrument since initial recognition:

(A) The Group determines that there has been a significant increase in credit risk on a receivable
(futures trading margin receivable and other receivables) if it is either past due over 30 days
or in violation of the terms of the agreement.

(B) Refundable deposits that have not been returned and the number of days past the refund date
is more than 30, excluding deposits not returned due to specific conditions set in the contract.

(C) At the balance sheet date, a debt instrument is considered to have significant increase in credit
risk if the credit rating of the credit reference subject is non-investment grade and any of the
following conditions apply:

a. The credit rating of the credit reference subject has dropped by more than one scale since
initial recognition.

b. The implicit credit spread of the debt instrument has increased by a certain number of
basis points since initial recognition.

(D) The definition of a financial asset in default

a. The Group adopts the assumptions under IFRS 9, the default occurs when the contract
75~



payments are past due over 90 days.
b. A debt instrument investment is considered in default if any of the following conditions
apply:
(a) Bond was credit-impaired at the time of purchase.
(b) At the financial reporting date, the bond is rated as “in default.”

(c) Interest or principal payments have not been made in accordance with the issuance
terms.

(d) Due to credit condition of the issuer, the issuance terms were changed so that interest
payments were delayed or not made at all.

(e) The issuer or guarantor has ceased operations, applied for reorganization, filed for
bankruptcy, dissolved, or sold assets that have a significant impact on the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

(E) Write off policy
If the Group cannot reasonably expect to recover the entire or part of the financial asset, it
will write off the entire or part of the financial asset.
(F) Measurement of expected credit loss and consideration of forward-looking information
a. Futures trading margin receivable
Obtain historical loss rates (based on the historical losses from the past three years,
compare the current and past economic environments to the predicted future environment
(forward-looking factor) and determine if there is a significant change; adjust the estimate
for future loss rates accordingly).

{Blank)
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(a) The total carrying amount, allowance for losses, and maximum exposure of “futures
trading margin receivable” of the Group are as follows:

September 30, 2020

Lifetime
Significant
Increase in
12 months credit risk  Credit impaired
Without past due or More than  More than
within 30 days 30 days 90 days Total
Expected loss rate 0% 99.29% 100%
Total book value $ - 8 - § 122,112 $122,112
Loss allowance $ - 3 - (§ 122,112) ($122,112)
Maximum exposure amount $ - 3 - § - § -
December 31, 2019
Lifetime
Significant
increase in
12 months credit risk Credit impaired
Without past due or More than ~ More than
within 30 days 30 days 90 days Total
Expected loss rate 0% 97.84% 100%
Total book value g - § - 5 86,409 $ 86,409
Loss allowance $ - § - (3 86,409) (§ 86,409)
Maximum exposure amount $ - § - 8 - $ -

September 30, 2019

Lifetime
Significant
increase in
12 months credit risk Credit impaired
Without past due or More than  More than
within 30 days 30 days 90 days Total

Expected loss rate 0% 97.84% 100%
Total book value $ 364 $ - 3 86,390 $ 86,754
Loss allowance $ - 3 - (8 86,390) ($ 86,390)
Maximum exposure amount $ 364 § - § - $ 364
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(b) Movements in loss allowance for futures trading margin receivable is as follows:

For the nine months ended September 30, 2020

Lifetime
Significant
increase in
12 months credit risk Credit impaired
Without past due or More than ~ More than
within 30 days 30 days 90 days Total

January 1, 2020 $ - 5 - (% 86,409) (§ 86,409)
Provision for impairment - - ( 39,020) ( 39,020)
Reversal of impairment loss - - 3,317 3,317

Write off - - - -
September 30, 2020 (S 122,112) ($122,112)

w2
1

o2
]

For the nine months ended September 30, 2019

Lifetime
Significant
increase in
12 months credit risk Credit impaired
Without past due or More than ~ More than
within 30 days 30 days 90 days Total

January 1, 2019 $ - (8 2,320) ($ 86,810) (§ 89,136)
Provision for impairment - - ( 1,465) (  1,465)
Reversal of impairment loss - 1,018 1,885 2,903
Write off - 1,308 - 1,308
September 30, 2019 $ - 3 - (3 86,390) ($ 86,390)

b. Bond investments
The expected credit loss (ECL) model is primarily based on the following three parameters:
probability of default (PD), loss given default (LGD), and exposure at default (EAD).
(a) Probability of default: Calculated using the default rate tables published by external
credit rating agencies and incorporating forward-looking information.

(b) Loss given default: Calculated based on the guarantees and the priority of claims of the
debt instrument, and the average recovery rates published by external credit rating
agencies.

(c) Exposure at default: total carrying amount (including interest receivable). The carrying
amount is measured at amortised cost before any adjustments to the allowance for losses.

(d) The expected credit loss of the investments in debt instrument at amortised cost of the

Group, within 12 months, as of September 30, 2020, December 31, 2019 and September
30, 2019, are as follows:
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September 30, 2020 December 31, 2019  September 30, 2019

12 months 12 months 12 months
Expected loss rate - - 0.062%
Total book value 3 - § - $ 62,094
Loss allowance - - 38
Maximum exposure amount  $ - § -3 62,056

(e) The Group has no life time expected credit loss of the investments in debt instrument at
amortised cost as of September 30, 2020, December 31, 2019 and September 30, 2019.

(f) Forward-looking information considerations

One of the quantitative indicators used in the assessment of significant increase in credit
risk on debt instruments measured at amortised cost is the change in external credit
ratings published by international credit rating agencies. The measure of expected credit
loss 1s based on external credit ratings, the probability of default and loss given default
information published by external credit rating agencies. These credit ratings
incorporate forward-looking information, which is considered to be appropriate by the
Group in estimating the expected credit losses.

D. Movements in loss allowance for financial assets at amortised cost (including interest receivables)

within 12 months are as follows:

2020 2019
12 months 12 months
At January 1, $ - (§ 53)
Reversal of impairment - 15
At September 30, $ - (% 38)

E. For investments in debt instruments at amortised cost, the credit rating levels within 12 months
are presented as below:

September 30, 2020 December 31, 2019  September 30, 2019

12 months 12 months 12 months
Financial assets at amortised cost
Group 1 h - 3 - 3 62,056
b - 3§ - 3 62,056
Group 1: Credit rating level over BBB+.
(Blank)
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(8) Currency rigk
A. The Group’s businesses involve some non-functional currency operations. The information on
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies whose values would be materiaily
affected by the exchange rate fluctuations is as follows:
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(Foreign currency:

functional currency) September 30, 2020 December 31, 2019 September 30, 2019
Foreign Foreign Foreign
currency Exchange currency Exchange currency Exchange
Financial instruments (in thousands) rate (in thousands) rate (in thousands) rate

Financial assets
Monetary items

USD/NTD $ 1,307,215 29.1000 $ 1,080,059 29.9800 § 1,040,320 31.0400
JPY/NTD 409,138 0.2756 450,194 0.2760 525,191 (0.2878
HKD/NTD 116,055 3.7540 118,124 3.8490 126,624 3.9580
EUR/NTD 9,824 34.1500 14,979 33.5900 14,894 33.9500
GBP/NTD 8,191 37.3000 6,926 39,3600 6,484 38.2000
AUD/NTD 5,956 20,7150 5,346 21.0050 11,664 20.9650
SGD/NTD 797 21.2600 555 22,2800 302 22.4700
CNY/NTD 102,464 4.2690 99,350 4.3050 113,295 4.3500
CHF/NTD - 31.5850 - 30,9250 2 31.2650
USD/HKD 79,699 7.7500 75,003 7.7874 73,584 7.8407
CNY/HKD 33,243 1.1367 30,047 1.1183 27,978 1.0986
EUR/HKD 717 9.0745 746 8.7266 740 8.5719
JPY/HKD 29,933 0.0733 36,090 0.0717 33,387 0.0727
SGD/HKD - 5.6571 - - 3 56737
MYR/HKD 91 1.8650 - - - -
THB/HKD 4,477 0.2447 - - - -
NTD/HKD 73,569 0.2661 51,468 0.2587 34,990 0.2526
VND/HKD 43,149 33.3000 - - - -
USD/ CNY 1,224 6.8252 2,104 6.9879 2,104 7.0731
(Foreign currency:
functional currency) September 30, 2020 December 31, 2019 September 30, 2019
Foreign Foreign Foreign
currency Exchange currency Exchange currency Exchange

Financial instruments (in thousands) rate (in thousands) rate {(in thousands) rate
Financial liabilities
Monetary items

USD/NTD 1,297,864 29.1000 1,042,784 29,0800 1,031,887 31.0400
JPY/NTD 396,214 0.2756 445,428 0.2760 503,951 0.2878
HKD/NTD 113,711 3.7540 114,250 3.8490 120,656 3.9580
EUR/NTD 8,761 34.1500 14,961 33.5900 14,866 33.9500
GBP/NTD 8,180 37.3000 6,914 39.3600 6,475 38.2000
AUD/NTD 5,953 20.7150 5,341 21.0050 11,651 20,9650
SGD/NTD 796 21.2600 554 22.2800 302 22.4700
CNY/NTD 101,055 4.2690 99,457 4.3050 112,917 4.3500
USD/HKD 52,081 7.7500 47,572 7.7874 44,765 7.8407
CNY/HKD 12,922 1.1367 12,359 1.1183 10,338 1.0986
EUR/HKD 254 9.0745 410 8.7266 439 8.5719
JPY/HKD 24,069 0.0733 30,445 0.0717 27,852 0.0727
MYR/HKD 90 1.8650 - - - -

THB/HKD 4,476 0.2447 - - - -

NTD/HKD 69,659 0.2661 50,716 0.2587 34,969 0.2526
VND/HKD 43,402 33.3000 - - - -
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B. The total exchange gains and losses, including realised and unrealised, arising from significant
foreign exchange variation on the monetary items held by the Group for the three months and

nine months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019 amounted to ($2,328), $2,275, ($11,645) and
($8,947), respectively.
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